
Agenda Date:        July 21, 2014  
 

1 
 

         AGENDA 
CRAVEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR SESSION 
MONDAY, JULY 21, 2014 

8:30 A.M. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL   
 
INVOCATION 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVE AGENDA 
 
APPROVE MINUTES OFJULY 7, 2014 REGULAR SESSION 
 
1. PUBLIC HEARING – ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT:  SALE OF REAL 

PROPERTY 
 

DEPARTMENTAL MATTERS 
 

2. TAX:  Ronnie Antry, Tax Administrator 
A. Annual Tax Collection Settlement 
B. Charge to the Tax Collector 
C. Tax Releases 

 
3. RECREATION – BUDGET AMENDMENT:  Eddie Games, Recreation Director 
 
4. CARTS – BUDGET AMENDMENT:  Gene Hodges, Interim Director 

 
5. SHERIFF – BUDGET AMENDMENT:  Jesse Pittman, Administrative Captain 

 
6. PLANNING – HURRICANE IRENE HAZARD MITIGATION HMGP ELEVATION 

PROJECT AWARD:  Chip Bartlett, Holland Consulting Planners 
 

7. APPOINTMENTS 
 

8. COUNTY ATTORNEY’S REPORT:  Aaron Arnette, County Attorney 
Representative 
 

9. COUNTY MANAGER’S REPORT:  Jack Veit 
 
 
 

10. COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS 



Agenda Date:        July 21, 2014  
 

2 
 

 
11. CLOSED SESSION 

 
  



Agenda Date:        July 21, 2014  
 

3 
 

Presenter:       
Agenda Item No. 1     
Board Action Required:  Yes    

 
 
 
 
 
 

PUBLIC HEARING – ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT:  SALE OF REAL PROPERTY 
 

Per the requirements of General Statutes 158-7.1, a public hearing will be held on 
Monday, July 21, 2014 at 8:30 a.m. The purpose of this public hearing will be to discuss 
the sale of real property in the industrial park to Minges Building Account, LLC (Minges) 
for the purpose of industrial expansion and job creation, and to receive public 
comments.  
 
Minges proposes to purchase Lot 30 in the Craven County Industrial Park (Parcel 8-
217-5004), which is approximately 8 acres. Minges will build a warehouse/distribution 
facility on that parcel to replace their existing facility on Dr. MLK Blvd in New Bern. The 
new facility is planned to be about 10,000 square feet of warehouse and 1,600 of office. 
The facility is projected to cost approximately $2,000,000 to construct.  
 
Minges has offered to purchase Lot 30 for $93,000, or $11,625 per acre. The County 
has determined that the fair market value of Lot 30 is $160,000, or $20,000 per acre. In 
an effort to encourage the location and expansion of other industries within County and 
to reward Minges for its intended investment in the county, County will consider 
conveying and selling Lot 30 to Minges for $93,000, which will provide to Minges an 
incentive of $67,000 when compared to the fair market value. 
 
After the close of the public hearing the Board may consider authorizing the sale of the 
industrial park property and the execution of documents, necessary to effectuate this 
economic development project. (See Attachment #1) 
 

Board Action:  Approve the Resolution authorizing the sale of the real property.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



Agenda Date:        July 21, 2014  
 

4 
 

      Presenter: Ronnie Antry     
      Agenda Item No. 2     
      Board Action Required:  Yes    
      
 

 
 
 

DEPARTMENTAL MATTERS:  TAX 
 

A. ANNUAL TAX COLLECTION SETTLEMENT 
 
Before being charged with the collection of the taxes for 2014, the settlement of the 
2013 taxes will be presented.  Copies of the settlement appear as Attachment #2.A 
 
Pursuant to GS 105-373, it is requested that the Board accept this settlement and enter 
it into its minutes. 
 
Board Action:  Vote to accept settlement 
 
B. CHARGE TO THE COLLECTOR FOR 2014 TAXES 
 
The Board is requested to adopt and enter into its minutes the attached order that is 
required by NCGS 105-321(b), as is done at this time each year.  (See Attachment 
#2.B.) 
 
 
Board Action:  Vote to direct Tax Administrator to collect 2014 taxes 
 
C. TAX RELEASES 
 
Craven County Tax Administrator, Ronnie Antry, will present the routine requests for tax 
releases contained in Attachment #2.C. for the Board’s approval. 
 
Board Action:  A roll call vote is needed to approve tax releases 

  



Agenda Date:        July 21, 2014  
 

5 
 

      Presenter: Eddie Games     
      Agenda Item No. 3     
      Board Action Required:  Yes    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DEPARTMENTAL MATTER – RECREATION:  BUDGET AMENDMENT 
 

In September of 2013 the Recreation Department received a $20,000 grant from 
the Community Transformation Grant (TFG) program to update our Recreation Master 
Plan. East Carolina University (ECU) was chosen to complete the plan along with plans 
for Pitt, Pamlico and Carteret Counties. At the close of the 2014 fiscal year ECU had not 
completed our plan; therefore, the remaining funds were rolled into the fund balance. 
We are now requesting a budget amendment, contained in Attachment #3, for the 
remaining $9,784 to complete the master plan. The master plan is approximately 75% 
complete and should be completed by late summer or early fall.  
  
 
 
Board Action:  A roll call vote is needed to approve budget amendment 
  



Agenda Date:        July 21, 2014  
 

6 
 

      Presenter: Gene Hodges     
      Agenda Item No. 4     
      Board Action Required:  Yes    
 
 
 

 
 
 

DEPARTMENTAL MATTERS – CRAVEN AREA RURAL TRANSPORTATION 
SERVICE (CARTS):  BUDGET AMENDMENT 

 
CARTS Interim Director, Gene Hodges, will present the budget amendment contained 
in Attachment #4, for the Board’s approval.  The budget amendment is to include the 
cost of purchasing the FY 2014 approved vehicles in FY 2015.  One of the vehicles 
budgeted in FY2014 was ordered but not delivered by June 30, 2014.  Ninety percent of 
the cost of vehicles will be reimbursed by the State; the 10% local match is anticipated 
to be covered by the sale of the vehicle being replaced. 
 
 
Board Action:  A roll call vote is needed to approve budget amendment 

  



Agenda Date:        July 21, 2014  
 

7 
 

      Presenter: Jesse Pittman     
      Agenda Item No. 5     
      Board Action Required:  Yes    
 
 
 
 
 
 

DEPARTMENTAL MATTERS – SHERIFF:  BUDGET AMENDMENT 
 

Administrative Captain, Jesse Pittman, will present the budget amendment contained 
in Attachment #5 for the Board’s approval.  In February of 2014 a budget amendment 
was passed allowing a $10,000 donation to be credited to the “other supplies” line item 
in the 2013/2014 FY budget.  Only $389.56 of the $10,000 was spent last fiscal year, 
creating a carryover in the amount of $9,610.44 
 
 
 
Board Action:  A roll call vote is needed to approve budget amendment 

  



Agenda Date:        July 21, 2014  
 

8 
 

      Presenter: Chip Bartlett     
      Agenda Item No. 6     
      Board Action Required:  Yes    
 
 
 
 
 
 

DEPARTMENTAL MATTERS – PLANNING:  HURRICANE IRENE HAZARD 
MITIGATION GRANT PROGRAM (HMGP) ELEVATION PROJECT AWARD 

 
A bid opening for the elevation of four (4) repetitive loss structures in the Hurricane 
Irene HMGP Elevation Project was held on July 10, 2014. Bids were received from four 
(4) contractors, as shown in Attachment #6; IMEC Group, LLC, Paul Woolard, Inc., B&B 
Construction and Gilbert Everett.  The following recommendations for awards to the 
lowest bidders are as follows:  
 
Unit #  Contractor   Price    Notes 
 
1&2  IMEC Group, LLC  $213,292 Lowest Lump Sum Bidder-  
*415 & 417 Riverside Dr. New Bern units are adjacent to each other and were bid 

together. 
 
3  Paul Woolard, Inc.  $82,938 Low Bidder 
*407 Harbor Dr. New Bern 
 
4  IMEC Group, LLC  $93,515 Low Bidder 
*103 Seafarer Ct. New Bern 
 
The recommended bid amount is within the program budget. FEMA grant money will be 
used to perform the elevation work. 
 
A map indicating project locations is included in the attachment. 
 
 
Board Action: A vote to award the elevation work to IMEC Group, LLC and Paul 
Woolard, Inc. is needed to allow us to move forward with the project.  
  
     

  



Agenda Date:        July 21, 2014  
 

9 
 

      Presenter:       
      Agenda Item No. 7     
      Board Action Required:  Yes    
    
       
 
 
 
 

APPOINTMENTS 
 
 

A. PENDING 
B. UPCOMING 

 
 
 
Board Action:  Appointments will be effective immediately, unless otherwise 
specified. 
 

  



Agenda Date:        July 21, 2014  
 

10 
 

A. PENDING APPOINTMENT(S): 
 
HAVELOCK BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT        
AUTHORIZATION: Havelock City Code – Article XI      
MISSION/FUNCTION:      
         
         
NUMBER OF MEMBERS:   TYPE: 
7      City of Havelock   
1      Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (County)  
1      Extraterritorial alternate (County) 
       
 
 
QUALIFICATIONS (Special Skills, Professional Classifications, Affiliations, Limitations, etc.): 
 
County appointees must reside in the extraterritorial areas of the City of Havelock.  
    
 
LENGTH OF TERMS: 3 Years 
 
MEETING SCHEDULE:3rd Wednesday of the month at 7:30 p.m., and at the call of the Chair  
 
Terms ending: Nancy Webster, Alt.(Appointed 2009; resigned) 
 
No applications on file. 
 
  



Agenda Date:        July 21, 2014  
 

11 
 

 
NEW BERN PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD     
AUTHORIZATION: N.C.G.S. Chapter 160-A, Article 19     
MISSION/FUNCTION: Renders final decisions on subdivision approvals, and advisory   
       decisions to the Board of Aldermen on other land use matters. 
            
NUMBER OF MEMBERS:   TYPE: 
10      9 appointed by New Bern Board of Aldermen 
           1 appointed by Craven County Commissioners 
 
 
QUALIFICATIONS (Special Skills, Professional Classifications, Affiliations, Limitations, etc.): 
 
The Commissioners’ appointee must reside in New Bern’s extraterritorial jurisdiction area.  
 
LENGTH OF TERMS: 3 Years 
 
MEETING SCHEDULE: 1st Tuesday of each month        
 
COMPENSATION: No  ;   Yes X Specify: $15 per meeting  
 
Term(s) expiring:  Velda Whitfield (resigned) 
 
No applications on file. 

  



Agenda Date:        July 21, 2014  
 

12 
 

PLANNING BOARD         
AUTHORIZATION: N.C.G.S. 153A-21        
MISSION/FUNCTION:      
         
         
NUMBER OF MEMBERS:   TYPE: 
8      Representatives from around the County (from 
each       township to the extent possible) 
                 
                 
                 
 
 
QUALIFICATIONS (Special Skills, Professional Classifications, Affiliations, Limitations, etc.): 
 
           
 
LENGTH OF TERMS: 4 Years 
 
MEETING SCHEDULE: Fourth Thursday of each month, 5:00 p.m.  
 
COMPENSATION: No  Yes X Specify: $25 per meeting-members; $30 per meeting- 
        Chairman      
 
Term(s) expiring: Matthew Spirko (resigned) 
    
 
No Applications on file. 



Agenda Date:        July 21, 2014  
 

13 
 

ADULT CARE HOME ADVISORY COMMITTEE    
AUTHORIZATION: N.C.G.S.131D-31 
MISSION/FUNCTION: Work to maintain the intent of the Domiciliary Home Residents Bill of  
        Rights within the licensed homes in the County; to promote 
community         involvement and cooperation with domiciliary homes to ensure 
quality          care for the elderly and disabled adults 
    
NUMBER OF MEMBERS:   TYPE: 
9-11      Dictacted by the number of homes in the county; 
      homes have right to recommend 25% of appointees 
 
QUALIFICATIONS (Special Skills, Professional Classifications, Affiliations, Limitations, etc.): 
 
Cannot be employed by or have a relative in an adult care home.      
 
LENGTH OF TERMS: 3 Years 
 
MEETING SCHEDULE:             
 
COMPENSATION: No X Yes   Specify:       
 
Term(s) ending: Molly Smith (resigned) 
    
Application(s) on file: Rieko Evans (Attachment #7.A.) 



Agenda Date:        July 21, 2014  
 

14 
 

B. UPCOMING APPOINTMENTS 
 
August Adult Care Home Advisory Committee: 
  Kate Clark (Initial appointment 2011) 
  Laraine Mark (Initial appointment 2011) 
  Tom McDivor (Initial appointment 2011) 
  Ruth Swank (Initial appointment 2011; wishes to continue) 
  Joan Taylor (Initial appointment 2011) 
  Rick Walter (Initial appointment 2011) 
 
  EMS Advisory Committee: 
  Jackie Barrows, Craven County Communications 
  Chris Cangemi, N.C. Office of Emergency Medical Services 
  Mark Dail, Rhems Fire Department (Appointed 2012) 
  James Davis, CarolinaEast 
  Doug Ferguson, At-Large (Appointed 2006) 
  John Harrell, Bridgeton Rescue (Appointed 2009) 
  Joe Hoffman, Craven County Law Enforcement Association 
  Stanley Koontz, CarolinaEast Medical Director 
  Jean Matthews, Cove City Rescue (Appointed 2008) 
  Debra Rogers, CarolinaEast E.D. Supervisor 
  Nicholas Salter, MCAS Cherry Point 
  Ronnie Weems, Fire Association 
  Rick Zaccardelli, City of Havelock 
 
  Fire Tax Commissioners: 
  Otto Simmons, Rhems (Appointed 2012 to unexpired term) 
 
  Nursing Home Advisory Committee: 
  Britt Bendy (Appointed 2011) 
  Deborah Shannon (Appointed 2011) 
 
September Nursing Home Advisory Committee 
  Linda Lelli (Appointed 2011) 
 
  River Bend Planning Board 
  Kelly Forrest (Appointed 2012) 
 
  Agricultural Advisory Board 
  Johnny Pritchard (Appointed 2011) 

  



Agenda Date:        July 21, 2014  
 

15 
 

      Presenter: Aaron Arnette     
      Agenda Item No. 8     
      Board Action Required:  Yes    

 
 
 
 
 

COUNTY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 

Offer to Purchase Real Property – 836 Howard Street (#8-003-069). 
 
The County and City have received an offer in the amount of $3,000.00 for this property, 
which was acquired through a tax foreclosure.  The total taxes and costs that were 
foreclosed on were $3,467.89.  The current tax value is $6,000.00.  Attachment #8 
contains a copy of the offer to purchase, deed, and GIS information.  The City will 
consider this request at a subsequent meeting. 
 
Should the Board accept this offer, and subject to approval by the City, the property will 
then be advertised for upset bids in accordance with General Statutes.  Once no further 
upset bids are timely received, the County and City may accept or reject the final offer. 
 
 
Board Action:  Consider a vote to accept the offer. 

  



Agenda Date:        July 21, 2014  
 

16 
 

      Presenter: Jack Veit     
      Agenda Item No. 9     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

COUNTY MANAGER’S REPORT 
  



Agenda Date:        July 21, 2014  
 

17 
 

      Presenter:       
      Agenda Item No. 10     

 
 
 
 
 
 

COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS 
  



Agenda Date:        July 21, 2014  
 

18 
 

      Presenter:       
      Agenda Item No. 11     
      Board Action Required:  Yes    
 

 
 
 
 
 

CLOSED SESSION 
 

A. PERSONNEL 
 
The Board will be requested to go into closed session pursuant to  
NCGS 143-318.11(a)(6) to discuss performance and qualifications of personnel. 
 
 
B. ACQUISITION OF TEMPORARY EASEMENT – 501 Stately Pines Road (#6-

213-030). 
 
The County needs to acquire a temporary, two year utility easement for the Castle 
Hayne water project, the easement being approximately 40 feet by 50 feet.  The 
property is owned by Charles M. Eatmon. 
 
The County Attorney requests a closed session in accordance with G.S. §143-
318.11(a)(5) to instruct the staff and attorney as to the price and other material terms for 
the acquisition of the same. 

 
 
Board Action:  A vote to go into closed session. 
 

 



Attachment #1 

RESOLUTION OF THE CRAVEN COUNTY BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS APPROVING CONVEYANCE OF REAL PROPERTY 

FOR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PURPOSES 

WHEREAS, Craven County (hereinafter "County") has determined that County 

has historically suffered a degree of economic and fiscal distress which can be remedied 

in part by the expansion of industries currently located in County and the location of new 

industries in County; and, 

WHEREAS, the unemployment rate of County is greater than the state and 

national unemployment rates, deficiencies which can be remedied in part by the 

expansion and location of industries in County; and, 

WHEREAS, furthermore, the median average wage for all insured industries in 

County is $38,792.00, as determined by the North Carolina Department of Commerce, 

Division of Employment Security; and, 

WHEREAS, the expansion and location of industries in County will benefit 

County and its citizens by increasing and diversifying both the personal property and real 

property ad valorem tax bases which will increase tax revenue, and resulting ancillary 

economic activity will increase sales tax revenues, all of which will make available to 

County more funds with which to improve the general health, safety and welfare of 

County's citizens; by providing a greater number of jobs with higher salaries and better 

benefits than are now available to citizens of County; by stimulating secondary economic 

activity which is directly beneficial to County and its citizens, including residential real 

estate development and the expansion of existing services and businesses; by increasing 

and improving the infrastructure of County; by increasing the economic opportunity 

available to County's citizens and by improving the general technical training of 

County's workforce; and, 

WHEREAS, MINGES BUILDING ACCOUNT, LLC (hereinafter "Minges"), 

which provides facilities for the storage and distribution of soft drinks and related 

products, intends to construct in County a new facility consisting of a+/- 11,600 square 

foot building ("New Facility") to be constructed in late 2014 and early 2015, for use and 

occupancy immediately upon completion, such facility expected to be valued at 

$2,000,000.00, and, 



WHEREAS, Minges expects to make investments 1n new equipment and 

machinery valued at $230,000.00 for said facility; and, 

WHEREAS, based upon the construction of the New Facility, Minges expects to 

retain the employment of 23 individuals currently employed in County, and expects to 

expand its employment by hiring an additional 28 individuals; and, 

WHEREAS, the average annual salary of all individuals to be employed by 

Minges at the New Facility shall be $40,980.00; and, 

WHEREAS, Minge's construction of the New Facility, Minge's retention of 23 

existing jobs and Minges' creation of 28 new jobs will aid tremendously in remedying 

the previously identified economic and fiscal distresses suffered by County and its 

citizens; and, 

WHEREAS, Minges has offered to purchase from County Lot 30 of the Craven 

County Industrial Park ("Lot 30") for a total purchase price of Ninety Three Thousand 

and no/100 Dollars ($93,000.00) (the "Purchase Price"), or Eleven Thousand Six 

Hundred Twenty Five and no/100 Dollars ($11,625.00) per acre; and, 

WHEREAS, County has determined that the fair market value of Lot 30 is 

Twenty Thousand and no/100 Dollars ($20,000.00) an acre, for a total value of One 

Hundred Sixty Thousand and no/100 Dollars ($160,000.00) (the "Fair Market Value"); 

and, 

WHEREAS, County has determined that in an effort to encourage the location 

and expansion of other industries within County and to reward Minges for its intended 

investment in County, County should convey and sell to Minges Lot 30 for the Purchase 

Price, which will provide to Minges an incentive of Sixty Seven Thousand and no/1 00 

Dollars ($67,000.00) when compared to the Fair Market Value; and, 

WHEREAS, the terms and conditions of the transactions herein contemplated are 

more particularly described in the Agreement Conveying Real Property for Economic 

Development Purposes and the Agreement for Purchase and Sale of Real Estate, both 

attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference; and, 

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. § 158-7.1(a), local governments, 

including County, are authorized: 

2 



[T]o make appropriations for the purposes of aiding 
and encouraging the location of manufacturing 
enterprises, making industrial surveys and locating 
industrial and commercial plants in or near such city 
or in the county; encouraging the building of 
railroads or other purposes which, in the discretion 
of the governing body of the city or of the county 
commissioners of the county, will increase the 
population, taxable property, agricultural industries 
and business prospects of any city or county. These 
appropriations may be funded by the levy of 
property taxes pursuant to G.S. 153A-149 and 160A-
209 and by the allocation of other revenues whose 
use is not otherwise restricted by law. 

Furthermore, N.C. Gen. Stat. § 158-7.1( d) also permits local govetnments, including 

County, to convey property held for industrial or commercial use after notice to the 

public, a public hearing and a determination of the probably hourly wage to be paid by 

the prospective industry; and, 

WHEREAS, N.C. Gen. Stat.§ 158-7.1(d2) allows County in arriving at the value 

of the consideration that it receives for the conveyance of property held for economic 

development purposes to consider prospective tax revenues coming to the County for 10 

years after the conveyance provided that County determines that the conveyance will 

stimulate the local economy, promote business and result in the creation of a substantial 

number of jobs that pay at or above the median average wage in County and further 

provided that County contractually binds the grantee of the property to construct the 

improvements expected to generate said tax revenues within 5 years; and, 

WHEREAS, County has determined that the probable hourly average wage to be 

paid by Minges to its employees to be employed at the New Facility is $19.70 for a 

weekly average hourly wage of $788.08, which is a rate above County's median average 

wage for all insured industries of $38,792.00, as determined by the Notih Carolina 

Department of Commerce, Division of Employment Security; and, 

WHEREAS, based on Minges' construction of the New Facility, County has 

determined that County's ad valorem tax revenue from the New Facility (excluding the 

land value of Lot 30) will be approximately $9,350.00 per year, for a total of $93,500.00 

over 10 years; and, 

3 



WHEREAS, Lot 30 has heretofore been owned for over 2 decades by County, 

thereby generating no ad valorem tax revenue for County, and upon transfer of Lot 30 to 

Minges, additional ad valorem tax revenue generated by Lot 30 will begin accruing to 

County; and, 

WHEREAS, based on Minge's construction of New Facility, County has 

determined that County's prospective sales tax revenues from said construction will be 

$ .00; and, 

WHEREAS, County has determined that the conveyance to Minges of Lot 30 

herein described will stimulate the local economy, promote business, and result in the 

creation of a substantial number of jobs that pay at or above the average wages currently 

available in County; and, 

WHEREAS, the proposed Agreement Conveying Real Property for Economic 

Development Purposes between Minges and County contains a provision that if Minges 

does not construct and occupy by December 31, '2015 a substantially complete New 

Facility on Lot 30, County shall have the right to foreclose upon Lot 30 pursuant to a 

note and deed of trust to be executed and delivered by Minges, thereby securing the 

performance by Minges of its obligations as described herein; and, 

WHEREAS, on July 2tst, 2014, and after proper public notice, pursuant to N.C. 

Gen. Stat. § 158-7.1 the Board of Commissioners for County held a public hearing 

concerning its intent to convey and sell to Minges Lot 30, upon the terms and conditions 

herein described; and, 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of County does desire to convey and 

grant to Minges Lot 30, by and through the Agreement for Purchase and Sale of Real 

Property and the Agreement Conveying Real Property for Economic Development 

Purposes, both attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, and does further 

desire that this RESOLUTION serve as a memorial of the actions taken by the Board of 

Commissioners on this matter. 

4 

Now, therefore, be it resolved as follows: 

1. That the Agreement Conveying Real Property for Economic Development 

Purposes attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference is hereby 

approved in its entirety, and shall be executed and delivered by County at 



such appropriate time as advised by counsel to County. 

2. That the Agreement for Purchase and Sale of Real Property attached 

hereto and incorporated herein by reference is hereby ratified and 

approved in its entirety. 

3. That, pursuant to the aforesaid agreements, County shall execute 

and deliver such documents and instruments as may be necessary in 

the opinion of counsel to County to accomplish the purposes of said 

Agreements, including but not limited to the transfer and conveyance to 

Minges of Lot 30. 

4. That the Chairman, Clerk to the Board, Manager, Assistant Managers, 

Economic Developer and such other officers and agents of County 

are hereby authorized to execute any and all documents necessary in 

the opinion of counsel to County to effectuate any of the transactions 

contemplated herein. 

5. That this RESOLUTION be entered in the official minutes of the Board of 

Commissioners of County and that the Clerk to the Board certify copies 

of this RESOLUTION as may be necessary in the opinion of counsel to 

County. 

This the __ day of July, 2014. 

CRAVEN COUNTY 

BY: 
________ ,CHAIRMAN 

ATTEST: 

GWENDOLYN BRYAN, CLERK 

5 



AGREEMENT CONVEYING REAL PROPERTY 
FOR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PURPOSES 

THIS AGREEMENT CONVEYING REAL PROPERTY FOR ECONOMIC 

DEVELOPMENT PURPOSES made and entered into this __ day of July, 2014, by and 

between CRAVEN COUNTY and MINGES BUILDING ACCOUNT, LLC, is as follows: 

WITNESSETH: 

ARTICLE I 

Definitions 

Certain terms having specific definitions are used in this Agreement, and these terms and 

definitions, unless the context clearly indicates to the contrary, are as set forth in this Article. The 

defined terms appearing in this Article are set forth in exact form as they appear between the 

quotation marks. When the same term is used in this Agreement with the meaning as assigned 

herein, it shall appear in the identical capitalized form. Otherwise, the meaning shall be as used in 

the context of the sentence in which it appears and not necessarily that as defined herein. 

1.1 "Agreement" - means and refers to this Agreement Conveying Real Property for 

Economic Development Purposes. 

1.2 "Note"- means and refers to that Promissory Note attached hereto and incorporated 

herein by reference. 

1.3 "Minges" - means and refers to Minges Building Account, LLC, a limited liability 

company organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State ofNorth Carolina. 

1.4 "Deed of Trust" - means and refers to that Deed of Trust attached hereto and 

incorporated herein by reference. 

1.5 "County" -means and refers to Craven County, a body politic and corporate. 

1.6 "Real Estate Contract" - means and refers to that certain Agreement for Purchase 

and Sale of Real Property between County and Minges Building Account, LLC. 

1.7 "Effective Date"- means and refers to ___ ., 2014. 

1.8 "Parties" -means and refers to County and Minges collectively. 

1.9 "New Facility"- means and refers to Minges' +/- 11,600 square foot facility for the 

storage and distribution of soft drinks and related products, to be constructed on Lot 30. 

1.10 "Lot 30"- means and refers to that certain real property more particularly described 

as follows: 



***add description *** 

ARTICLE II 

Recitals 

2.1 County has determined that County has historically suffered a degree of economic 

and fiscal distress which can be remedied in part by the expansion of industries currently located in 

County. 

2.2 Citizens in County have an average wage level that is below average state wage 

levels, a deficiency which can be remedied in part by the expansion of industries currently located 

in County. County also suffers an unemployment rate higher than state and national unemployment 

rates. 

2.3 The expansion and retention of industries located in County will benefit County and 

its citizens by increasing and diversifying both the personal property and real property ad valorem 

tax bases and thus tax revenue, which will make available to County more funds with which to 

improve the general health, safety and welfare of County's citizens; by providing a greater number 

of jobs with higher salaries and better benefits than are now available to citizens of County; by 

stimulating secondary economic activity which is directly benefiCial to County and its citizens, 

including residential real estate development and the expansion of existing services and businesses; 

by increasing and improving the infrastructure of County; by increasing the economic opportunity 

available to County's citizens and by improving the general technical training of County's 

workforce. 

2.4 Minges intends to construct the New Facility in County on Lot 30, the New Facility 

to be valued at $2,000,000.00, and to make investments in equipment and machinery valued at 

$230,000.00 for the New Facility. Minges also intends to locate 23 existing employees at the New 

Facility and intends to hire 28 new employees at the New Facility, each such employee to be paid 

an expected weekly average wage of $788.08, a rate above the average rate paid to other employees 

in County. Minges' proposed investment and employment will aid tremendously in remedying the 

previously identified economic and fiscal distresses suffered by County and its citizens. 

2.5 Pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. § 158-7.1, local governments, including County, are 

authorized: 

[T] o make appropriations for the purposes of aiding and 
encouraging the location of manufacturing enterprises, 

2 



making industrial surveys and locating industrial and 
commercial plants in or near such city or in the county; 
encouraging the building of railroads or other purposes 
which, in the discretion of the governing body of the city or 
of the county commissioners of the county, will increase the 
population, taxable property, agricultural industries and 
business prospects of any city or county. These 
appropriations may be funded by the levy of property taxes 
pursuant to G.S. 153A-149 and 160A-209 and by the 
allocation of other revenues whose use is not otherwise 
restricted by law. 

Furthermore, N.C. Gen. Stat. § 158-7.1(d) also permits local governments, including County, to 

convey property held for industrial or commercial use after notice to the public, a public hearing 

and a determination of the probably hourly wage to be paid by the prospective industry. Moreover, 

N.C. Gen. Stat. § 158-7.1(d2) allows County in arriving at the value of the consideration that it 

receives for the conveyance of property held for economic development purposes to consider 

prospective tax revenues coming to the County for 10 years after the conveyance provided that 

County determines that the conveyance will stimulate the local economy, promote business and 

result in the creation of a substantial number of jobs that pay at or above the median average wage 

in County and further provided that County contractually binds the grantee of the property to 

construct the improvements expected to generate said tax revenues within 5 years. 

2.6 In an effort to reward and encourage Minges' investment and similar investments by 

other industries, County does desire to convey to Minges Lot 30 at a purchase price less than the 

fair market value of Lot 30. Moreover, County has determined that the agreements herein will 

necessarily result in an overall economic effect many times greater than the value of the agreements 

specified herein, that the proposed conveyance will stimulate the local economy, promote business 

and result in the creation of a substantial number of jobs that pay at or above the average wage in 

County. 

2.7 County has determined that the probable average hourly wage to be paid by Minges 

to employees working at the New Facility is $19.70 and that the expected tax revenues to be 

received by County from the New Facility, excluding tax revenues on account of the value of the 

underlying real estate, will exceed the difference between the fair market value of Lot 3 0 and the 

price to be paid by Minges for Lot 30. 

2.8 Minges has agreed that in the event for any reason it does not construct the New 

3 



Facility that County may declare a default and foreclose upon Lot 30, all pursuant to the Note and 

Deed of Trust. 

2.9 CRAVEN COUNTY COMMITTEE OF 100, LTD. has separately awarded Minges 

a grant to offset all or a portion of the impact fees expected to be charged Minges for its New 

Facility by the City of New Bern, thereby giving Minges further reward and incentive for the 

construction of same. 

2.10 Accordingly, Minges and County do hereby desire to execute this Agreement to 

memorialize the agreements and understandings of the Parties relative to the matters and 

transactions herein contemplated. 

ARTICLE III 

Term of the Agreement 

The term of this Agreement shall be a period of time beginning on the Effective Date and 

ending December 31, 2016. 

ARTICLE IV 

Responsibilities of Minges 

As consideration for this Agreement, Minges agrees to: 

4.1 Construct the New Facility on Lot 30, and to obtain a final certificate of occupancy 

for the New Facility on or before December 31, 2015. 

4.2 Execute, deliver and record the Note and Deed of Trust, on or before the Effective 

Date. 

4.3 Maintain Minges' existing employment of 23 individuals, and hire and maintain 28 

additional employees at the Facility from December 31, 2015 until at least December 31, 2016. 

4.4 Pay timely and before delinquency all ad valorem property taxes assessed by County 

as to Minges. 

4.5 Timely perform all its obligations under the Real Estate Contract. 

4.6 Provide information to County as reasonably necessary to confirm total employment 

at the New Facility from December 31, 2015 through December 31, 2016. 

4. 7 At all times act in accordance with a standard of good faith and fair dealing with 

County. 

ARTICLEV 

4 



Responsibilities of County 

As consideration for this Agreement, County agrees to: 

5.1 Timely perform its obligations under the Real Estate Contract. 

5.2 Prior to exercising its rights under the Note and Deed of Trust, and to the extent 

permitted by applicable law (including but not limited to N.C. Gen. Stat.§ 158-7.1), County agrees 

to not act arbitrarily or capriciously but rather agrees to give Minges an opportunity to demonstrate 

its progress on the improvements herein contemplated and that any delays in the construction of the 

improvements herein contemplated were caused by events of force majeure beyond the control of 

Minges. County further agrees to fairly and in good faith examine all relevant factors in light of the 

purposes and intent behind state laws controlling this Agreement before making any decision to 

exercise its rights under the Note and Deed of Trust. 

5.3 Convey Lot 30 subject to conditions and restrictions customarily applied to 

properties located in the Craven County Industrial Park. 

5.4 Act in accordance with a standard of good faith and fair dealing with Minges. 

ARTICLE VI 

Termination 

6.1 Mutual Termination: This Agreement may not be terminated by either party 

except as provided herein or by a written agreement signed by both parties. 

6.2 Insolvency of Minges: County shall have the right, in its discretion, to declare the 

Agreement terminated, if (1) by the order of a court of competent jurisdiction, a receiver, liquidator, 

custodian or trustee of Minges, or of a major part of its property, shall be appointed and the order 

shall not have been discharged within sixty ( 60) days, or if, by decree of such a court, Minges shall 

be adjudicated insolvent or a major part of its property shall have been sequestered and such decree 

shall have continued undischarged and unstayed for sixty (60) days after the entry thereof, or if a 

petition to reorganize Minges pursuant to the Federal Bankruptcy Code or any other similar statute 

applicable to Minges, as now or hereinafter in effect, shall be filed against Minges and such petition 

shall not be dismissed within sixty (60) days after such filing, or Minges shall be adjudicated 

bankrupt or shall file a petition in voluntary bankruptcy under any provision of any bankruptcy law 

or shall consent to the filing of any bankruptcy or reorganization petition against it under any such 

law; or (2) Minges shall make an assignment for the benefit of its creditors, shall admit in writing 

5 



its inability to pay its debts generally as they become due, or shall consent to the appointment of a 

receiver or liquidator or trustee or assignee in bankruptcy or insolvency of it or of a major part of its 

property. 

6.3 Default: In the event Minges fails to perform its obligations under the Agreement 

in the Real Estate Contract, County may terminate this Agreement as a result of such failure upon a 

30 day written notification. 

ARTICLE VII 

Indemnity and Representations 

7.1 Minges shall indemnify County against all expenses, liabilities and claims of every 

kind, including reasonable attorneys' fees, incurred in favor of any person or entity arising out of 

either a failure by the Minges to perform any of the terms or conditions of this Agreement, or 

failure by Minges to comply with any law of any governmental authority which may arise in the 

course of the performance of this Agreement. 

7.2 Minges and County represent and warrant that they have the legal right and 

authority to enter into this agreement and to perform their respective obligations hereunder. 

ARTICLE VIII 

Miscellaneous 

8.1 Amendment: This Agreement may not be modified or amended except by 

subsequent written agreement authorized by each party and signed by authorized representatives of 

both parties. 

8.2 Severability: If any of the provisions of this Agreement shall be held by a court of 

competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional or unenforceable, the decision of such court shall not 

affect or impair any of the remaining provisions of this Agreement, and the parties shall, to the 

extent they deem to be appropriate, take such actions as are necessary to correct any such 

unconstitutional or unenforceable provision. It is hereby declared to be the intent of the parties to 

this Agreement that this Agreement would have been approved and executed had such an 

unconstitutional or unenforceable provision been excluded therefrom. 

8.3 Entire Agreement: This document contains the entire Agreement between the 

Parties, and no statement, oral or written, made by either party or agent of either party that is not 

contained in this Agreement shall be valid or binding. 

6 



8.4 Remedies: This Agreement shall be enforceable by the Parties hereto by all 

remedies available at law or in equity, including but not limited to specific performance. Failure or 

delay to exercise any right, remedy or privilege hereunder shall not operate as a waiver of such 

right, remedy or privilege nor prevent subsequent enforcement thereof. 

8.5 Covenant of Further Assurances: County and Minges agree that from and after 

the date of execution hereof, each will, upon the request of the other, execute and deliver such other 

documents and instruments and take such other actions as may be reasonably required to carry out 

the purpose and intent of this Agreement and that each shall have an ongoing duty of good faith and 

fair dealing with the other .. 

8.6 Assignment: No assignment (in whole or in part), delegation, transfer, or novation 

of this Agreement or any part thereof shall be made unless approved by both County and Minges. 

8.7 Multiple Originals: This Agreement shall be executed by the parties hereto in 

duplicate originals, each of which, when executed, shall constitute one and the same Agreement 

and one of which shall be retained by each party. 

8.8 Governing Law: This Agreement shall be governed in accordance with the laws of 

the State ofNorth Carolina and, as applicable, the laws of the United States of America. 

8.9 Confidentiality: The Parties agree that the terms and conditions of this Agreement 

shall be held in the strictest of confidence and shall not, except with the prior approval of the other 

Party (not to be unreasonably withheld), in any manner be shared with or disseminated to parties 

who are not Parties to this Agreement, except the Parties may share the terms and conditions with 

their advisors, for enforcement and defense of rights and duties hereunder, and as required by law, 

including specifically but not limited to Chapter 132 of the General Statutes ofNorth Carolina. 

8.10 Limitations of Liability: Neither Party shall be liable for consequential, incidental, 

indirect, punitive or special damages, however caused including without limitation for breach of 

warranty, breach or repudiation of contract, detrimental reliance, tort, strict liability, failure of 

essential purpose or otherwise, and even if advised of the likelihood of such damages. 

8.11 Representations and Warranties: Except as specifically agreed to herein, neither 

part makes any representations or warranties in relation to the subject matter of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE IX 

Notices 

7 



Any notice or other communication required or permitted under this Agreement shall be in 

writing and shall be deemed given as of the date it is (a) delivered by hand; (b) mailed, postage 

prepaid return receipt requested, to the parties at the addresses listed below or later specified in 

writing; or (c) sent, shipping prepaid, return receipt requested, by a national courier service, to the 

parties occupying the positions indicated at the addresses listed below. 

County: 

With copies to: 

Minges: 

Craven County Board of Commissioners 
c/o County Manager 
406 Craven Street 
New Bern, North Carolina 28560 

Craven County Economic Developer 
406 Craven Street 
New Bern, North Carolina 28560 

Sumrell Sugg, Attorneys 
Attn: Jimmie B. Hicks, Jr. or Arey W. Grady, III 
Post Office Drawer 889 
New Bern, North Carolina 28563-0889 

Minges Bottling Group 
c/o Jeff Minges 
PO Box 520 
Ayden, NC 28513 

IN WITNESS HEREOF, the parties hereto, intending to be bound, have executed this 
Agreement in duplicate originals the day and year first above written. 

CRAVEN COUNTY 

BY: 
____________ ,CHAIR1{AN 

ATTEST: 

GWENDOLYN BRYAN, CLERK 

MINGES BUILDING ACCOUNT, LLC 
BY: 

_____________ ,its _____ __ 

8 



EXHIBIT A 

[Note and Deed of Trust] 

9 



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF CRAVEN 

DEED OF TRUST AND 
SECURITY AGREEMENT 

THIS DEED OF TRUST AND SECURITY AGREEMENT (this "Deed of Trust") is 

made and entered into this __ day of , 2014, by and between MINGES 

BUILDING ACCOUNT, LLC, a North Carolina limited liability company, to JIMMIE B. 

HICKS, JR., Trustee of Craven Cm.l!~ty, North Carolina, for the benefit of CRA YEN COUNTY, 

a North Carolina unit of local government, Beneficiary, is as follows: 

RECITALS: 

A. Pursuant to the terms of an Agreement Conveying Real Property for Economic 

Development Purposes (the "Agreement") dated as of July, 2014 by and between Grantor and 

Beneficiary, Grantor is indebted to Beneficiary in the principal amount of SIXTY SEVEN 

THOUSAND and No/100 Dollars ($67,000.00). This obligation is evidenced by a Promissory 

Note (as the same may be amended or modified from time to time, the "Note") in the amount of 

$67,000.00, dated as of July ___ , 2014, executed and delivered by Grantor to Beneficiary, 

which is payable in accordance with its terms, but in no event shall the principal amount of the 

Note mature later than December 31, 2016. Other charges are payable as and at the rates 

specified in the Note, as it may be amended or modified from time to time. 

B. Grantor desires to secure the payment of the indebtedness evidenced by the Note 

and any modifications, renewals or extensions thereof, in whole or in part; any payments or 

advances made by Beneficiary in accordance with the terms of this Deed of Trust; and the 

fulfillment and performance of the covenants and agreements set forth in the Note, in this Deed 

of Trust and in the Agreement, by the conveyance of the Land and the other property described 

below. 

'', 



GRANTING CLAUSE 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of these premises and for the purposes aforesaid, 

and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 

acknowledged, Grantor has given, granted, bargained, sold, conveyed, assigned, and transferred 

and does hereby give, grant, bargain, sell, convey, assign and transfer unto Trustee, his heirs, 

administrators, legal representatives, successors and assigns, all of its right, title and interest in 

the tract(s) or parcel(s) of land lying and being in the City otNew Bern, Craven County, North 

Carolina, and more particularly described in Exhibit A attached hereto (the "Land"). 

TOGETHER with all buildings, structures and other improvements now or hereafter 

located on the Land, or any part or parcel thereof (collectively called the "Improvements"); and 

TOGETHER with all rights, title and interest of Grantor in and to the minerals, shrubs, 

timber and other emblements now or hereafter located on the Land, or under or above the Land; 

and 

TOGETHER with all and singular the tenements, hereditaments, easements, privileges 

and appurtenances thereunto belonging or in anywise appertaining to the Land, and the reversion 

or reversions, remainder and remainders, rents, issues and profits thereof; and also all the estate, 

right, title, interest, claim and demand whatsoever of Grantor of, in and to the same and of, in 

and to every part and parcel of the Land; and 

TOGETHER with a security interest in all machinery, apparatus, equipment, fittings, 

fixtures, whether actually or constructively attached or to be attached to the Land or the 

Improvements, and articles of personal property of every kind and nature whatsoever 

(collectively called the "Equipment"), now or hereafter located in, upon or under the Land and 

used or usable in connection with any present or future operation of the Land or the 

Improvements and now owned or hereafter acquired by Grantor, including, but without limiting 

the generality of the foregoing, all heating, air conditioning, freezing, lighting, laundry, 

incinerating and power equipment; engines; pipes; pumps; tanks; motors; conduits; 

switchboards; plumbing, lifting, cleaning, fire prevention, fire extinguishing, refrigerating, 

ventilating and communications apparatus; boilers, ranges, furnaces, oil burners or units thereof; 

appliances; air-cooling and air-conditioning apparatus; vacuum cleaning systems; elevators; 



escalators; shades; awnings; screens; storm doors and windows; stoves; wall beds; refrigerators; 

attached cabinets; patiitions; ducts and compressors; rugs and carpets; draperies; furniture and 

furnishings; together with all building materials and equipment now or hereafter delivered to the 

Land or stored with other supplies to be used in construction of the Improvements on the Land, 

including without limitation, in a warehouse or at the factory of supplier, and intended to be 

installed therein, together with all warehouse receipts or other evidence of ownership; together 

with all additions thereto and replacements thereof (Grantor hereby agreeing with respect to all 

additions and replacements to execute and deliver from time to time such further instruments as 

may be requested by Trustee to confirm the conveyance, transfer and assignment of any of the 

foregoing); and 

TOGETHER with any and all rents and security deposits which are now due or hereafter 

become due by reason of the renting, leasing and bailment of the Land, the Improvements or the 

Equipment; and 

TOGETHER with any and all awards or payments (including but not limited to 

condemnation awards and insurance proceeds), including interest thereon, and the right to 

receive the same, as a result of: (a) the exercise of the right of eminent domain; (b) the alteration 

of the grade of any street; or (c) any other injury, damage or casualty to or taking or loss of, or 

decrease in the value of, the Land, the Improvements or the Equipment, to the extent of all 

amounts which may be secured by this Deed of Trust at the date of receipt of any such award or 

payment by Trustee and of the reasonable attorneys' fees, costs and disbursements incurred by 

Trustee in connection with the collection of such award or payment. 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD all of the Land, the Improvements, the Equipment and all of 

the foregoing rights and privileges (collectively called the "Property") to Trustee, his heirs, 

administrators, legal representatives, successors and assigns, in fee simple forever, upon the trust 

and for the uses and purposes hereinafter set forth. The Deed of Trust will be subordinate at all 

times to any financing obtained by Grantor (i) to purchase the Property, (ii) construct improvements 

on the Property, or (iii) refinance any debt related to items (i) and (ii) above. If necessary, 

Beneficiary agrees to execute an agreement subordinating the lien of this Deed of Trust as required 

in the immediately preceding sentence. 



WARRANTY OF TITLE 

Grantor hereby covenants, wanants and represents that it is seised of the Property in fee, 

and that it has the right to convey the same in fee simple; that the Property is free and clear of all 

liens and encumbrances; and that it will warrant and defend the title to the Property against the 

claims of all persons whomsoever. Grantor shall, upon request of Beneficiary, execute and 

deliver such further instruments or assurances as may be necessary or proper to carry out the true 

intent and purpose of this Deed of Trust. 

SPECIAL TRUST 

THIS CONVEYANCE IS MADE UPON THIS SPECIAL TRUST, that if Grantor shall 

pay or cause to be paid or satisfied the Note in accordance with the terms thereof, and any 

renewals, extensions or modifications thereof, and shall comply with all of the covenants, terms 

and conditions of this Deed of Trust and the Agreement, then this conveyance shall be null and 

void and may be canceled of record at the request and cost of Grantor. But if at any time there 

shall be any default (whether by acceleration or otherwise) under the Note or the Agreement, or 

if there shall be any default in the payment of any of the amounts required to be paid under this 

Deed of Trust or under the Agreement, or if there shall be any default in any other of the terms 

and conditions of the Note, this Deed of Trust or the Agreement, and if such default is not cured 

within any applicable notice and cure period, if any, specified in the Agreement, then, at the 

option of Beneficiary, the entire indebtedness hereby secured shall immediately become due, 

payable and collectible without notice, regardless of maturity, and this Deed of Trust may be 

foreclosed by judicial proceedings, or Trustee or the successor of Trustee is hereby authorized 

and empowered to enter and take possession of the Property, and enter into contracts for the 

completion of the Property, personally or through his agent, and it shall be lawful for and the 

duty of Trustee, and he is hereby authorized and empowered, to expose to sale and to sell the 

Property, in whole or in part and in any order, at public sale for cash, in compliance with the 

requirements of the laws of the State of North Carolina relating to nonjudicial foreclosure sales 

in effect on the date such foreclosure is commenced; and at the time and place fixed for the sale 

to sell the Property, personally or through his agent, to the highest bidder for cash, free from any 

equity of redemption, homestead, dower or curtesy, and all other exemptions, all of which are 



hereby expressly waived. Upon such sale, Trustee shall execute a conveyance in fee simple to 

and deliver possession to the purchaser, and such sale by Trustee or his agent will create the 

relation of landlord and tenant at will between the purchaser at such sale and Grantor, or its 

successors, lessees and assigns. Without notice and upon default of such party in surrendering 

possession of the Property, such party may be removed by a writ of ejectment at the suit of either 

the purchaser or Trustee for the use and benefit of the purchaser. Trustee may sell the 

Equipment in whole or in part and in any order, together with the Land and the Improvements or 

separately, and the Equipment may be assembled for such sale by Trustee on the Land or 

elsewhere, in Trustee's sole discretion. Beneficiary may bid and become the purchaser at any 

sale under this Deed of Trust. After retaining not more than one percent (1 %) of the gross 

proceeds of the sale as compensation to Trustee, plus all expenses incurred by him including, but 

not limited to, the reasonable attorneys' fees for legal services actually performed, Trustee shall 

apply the residue of the proceeds first to pay the expense of making, maintaining and executing 

this trust and protecting the Property, second to t:1e payment of the indebtedness secured hereby 

and the balance, if any, shall be paid as required by law. Trustee may require the successful 

bidder at any sale to deposit immediately with Trustee cash or a certified check in an amount not 

to exceed ten percent ( 1 0%) of the bid, provided notice of such requirement is contained in the 

advertisement of sale. The bid may be rejected if the deposit is not immediately made, and 

thereupon the next highest bidder may be declared to be the purchaser. Such deposit shall be 

refunded without interest, in case a resale is had; otherwise, it shall be applied to the purchase 

price. 

GRANTOR FURTHER COVENANTS AND AGREES AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Covenant to Pay Indebtedness and Taxes. 

(a) Grantor will pay the indebtedness secured hereby, including principal (as 

defined in the Note), as and when due, and will pay prior to delinquency all taxes (subject to the 

provisions of paragraph 1 (b) hereof), assessments, levies and other charges of every character 

upon or against the Property. 



(b) Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, if Grantor in good faith 

believes that any tax, assessment or other charge payable by it shall be invalid, excessive or 

unenforceable in whole or in part, Grantor, upon written notice to Beneficiary in accordance with 

paragraph 9 below, may, at its sole expense, contest the validity, amount or enforceability of any 

such tax, assessment or other charge, provided that such tax is bonded off or other security 

satisfactory to Beneficiary has been posted so that the Property, or any part thereof, is not in 

danger of being forfeited. In such event, Grantor shall comply with all requirements of law as to 

conditions precedent to making any contest, and Grantor covenants to protect Beneficiary against 

foreclosure of any lien resulting from imposition of any tax, assessment or other charge which 

Grantor may contest. 

2. !nsurance;Restoration.Qt~~n10£ ~ill _k~~R.1h~ _ b_uilgLng~ ~I_!c!_ 2t_!l~r_ Lm_p_I2~e~e!llS ___ - -{~F_ie_ld_co_d_e_C_h_an--=g'-e_d ______ __, 

now or hereafter located on the Property insured against loss and damage by fire, flood (if any of 

the Improvements is located in an area having "speci~l flood hazards," as defined in the Federal 

Flood Protection Act of 1973), tornado and windstorm, with builder's risk or extended coverage, 

as applicable, against all risks in an amount not less than one hundred percent ( 100%) of the full 

replacement cost of such property, and against such other hazards as Beneficiary may reasonably 

require, including public liability coverage (combined single limit minimum of One Million and 

No/100 Dollars [$1,000,000.00]). All such insurance shall be in amounts satisfactory to 

Beneficiary if not otherwise specified above, but not less than the amounts sufficient to prevent 

any coinsurance liability, and shall be for the benefit of Beneficiary, with loss, if any, to be made 

payable in the policy or policies of insurance to Beneficiary as its interest may appear, the loss 

payable clauses to be in such form as Beneficiary may require. All such policies shall name 

Beneficiary as an additional insured and shall contain such provisions as Beneficiary may deem 

necessary or desirable to protect its interest, including but not limited to (a) a standard 

noncontributing mortgagee clause, and (b) a provision requiring that thirty (30) days' written 

notice be given to Beneficiary before any such policy is canceled or not renewed for any reason, 

including but not limited to nonpayment of premiums, or before there is any material change in 

the risks or coverages insured or the deductibles thereon. All insurance shall be in companies 

approved by Beneficiary with a Best's Insurance Guide rating of at least A:XII; and originals or 

certified true copies of the policies and renewals thereof shall, when issued, be immediately 

delivered to Beneficiary, and Grantor will pay all premiums for said policies. In the event of a 



transfer of the Property, including a transfer by foreclosure or deed in lieu of foreclosure, 

Grantor's interest in the insurance policies referred to above and any return premiums in 

connection therewith shall automatically be transferred to the successor in title to Grantor's 

interest in the Property. Each of the foregoing insurance policies shall be renewed and evidence 

thereof submitted to Beneficiary at least thirty (30) days prior to expiration. If Grantor fails or 

refuses to keep the Property so insured, Beneficiary may obtain such insurance without prejudice 

to its right to foreclose this Deed of Trust by reason of such default. If any insurance policy or 

part thereof shall expire or be withdrawn, or become void or subject to cancellation by reason of 

the breach of any condition thereof, or become void by reason of the failure or impairment of the 

capital of any company in which the insurance shall be carried, or if for any reason whatsoever 

the insurance shall be unsatisfactory to Beneficiary, Beneficiary may procure such insurance as it 

deems necessary to protect its sole interests in the Property. 

In the event of casualty or damage to or loss of any of the Property, Grantor will give 

immediate oral and written notice to Beneficiary, who may make proof of loss if not made 

promptly by Grantor. Beneficiary shall have the option, in Beneficiary's sole discretion, to apply 

all or any part of any insurance proceeds from any such casualty, damage or loss to the reduction 

of the indebtedness secured hereby in any order chosen by Beneficiary. 

3. Beneficiary's Self-Help Remedy. If Grantor: (a) defaults in the payment of any 

tax, lien, assessment, charge or any utility charge, whether public, private, levied or assessed 

against the Property; (b) defaults in the payment of any insurance premiums; (c) fails to keep the 

Property in repair; (d) commits, suffers or permits waste; or (e) fails in the performance or 

observance of any other covenant, condition or term of this Deed of Trust; or if any action at law 

or equity or any proceeding affecting the title to the Property is commenced, Beneficiary at its 

option may, without waiving any rights or recourse against Grantor for such default and 

regardless of whether any period granted to Grantor in the Note, this Deed of Trust or the 

Agreement to cure any such default has expired, pay said tax, lien, assessment, charge, utility 

charge or premium, perform any obligation or make such repairs and take such steps as are 

necessary to prevent or cure such waste, and may appear in any such necessary action as 

Beneficiary deems advisable in Beneficiary's sole discretion, and for any of said purposes, 

Beneficiary may, but shall not be obligated to, advance such sums of money as it deems 



necessary. All advances made by Beneficiary in connection therewith shall be secured by this 

Deed of Trust, and shall, upon demand, immediately be repaid by Grantor to Beneficiary with 

interest thereon at the rate of twelve percent (12%), or the highest rate permitted by law, 

whichever is less, per annum. Beneficiary shall be the sole judge, in the exercise of reasonable 

discretion, of the legality, validity and priority of any such tax, lien, assessment, charge, claim 

and premium; of the necessity for any such action and of the amount necessary to be paid in 

satisfaction thereof. Beneficiary, subject to the rights, if any, of tenants or subtenants in lawful 

possession of the Property, is hereby empowered to enter and to authorize others to enter upon 

the Property or any part thereof for the purpose of performing or observing any such default, 

covenant, condition or term, without thereby becoming liable to Grantor or to any person in 

possession holding under Grantor. 

4. Grantor's Property Maintenance Covenant. Grantor will keep and maintain 

the Property in first-class order, repair and condition; and it will not commit or permit any waste. 

Beneficiary shall have the right to inspect the Property at all reasonable times, and access thereto 

shall be permitted for that purpose to it or its authorized agents. Grantor shall neither permit nor 

perform any act which would impair the value of the Property or increase the risk of fire or other 

hazard to the Property. Nor shall Grantor remove any fixture owned by it located thereon unless 

said fixture is replaced by a fixture of equal value and utility. Grantor shall give notice orally 

and in writing to Beneficiary of any material loss or damage to the Property caused by any 

casualty. 

5. Removal and Replacement of Trustee. Beneficiary shall at any time and from 

time to time have the irrevocable right to remove Trustee without notice or cause and to appoint 

his successor by an instrument in writing, duly acknowledged, in such form as to entitle such 

written instrument to be recorded in the Craven County Public Registry, and in the event of the 

death or resignation of Trustee, Beneficiary shall have the right to appoint his successor by such 

a written instrument; and upon the recordation of any such instrument, any substitute trustee so 

appointed shall be vested with the title to the Property, and shall possess all the powers, duties 

and obligations herein confeiTed on Trustee in the same manner and to the same extent as though 

he were originally named herein as Trustee. 



6. Compliance With Laws; Zoning. Grantor will promptly comply with any 

applicable legal requirements of the State of North Carolina or any other governmental entity, 

agency or instrumentality relating to the use or condition of the Property including, without 

limitation, all zoning conditions, and will not cause, suffer or permit any change in the zoning of 

the Property. Grantor shall comply with the terms of all restrictions, easements and utility 

agreements affecting the Property. 

7. Appointment of Receiver. Beneficiary shall have the right, after default in any 

of the terms, covenants or agreements contained in this Deed of Trust, or contained in the Note 

or the Agreement, and upon the expiration of any applicable grace period specified in the 

Agreement, to the appointment of a receiver to take possession of the Property and to collect the 

rents and profits from the Property without consideration of the value of the Property or the 

solvency of any person liable for the payment of the amounts then owing; and all amounts 

collected by the receiver shall, after paying the expenses of, the receivership which Beneficiary 

deems necessary, be applied to the payment of the indebtedness secured hereby; and Beneficiary, 

at its option, in lieu of an appointment of a receiver, shall have the right to do the same. If such 

receiver is appointed, or if there is a sale of the Property, as provided above, Grantor, or any 

person in possession of all or part of the Property thereunder, as tenant (except a tenant under a 

lease that is superior to the lien of this Deed of Trust) or otherwise, shall become a tenant at will 

of the receiver or of the purchaser and may be removed by a writ of ejectment, summary or other 

lawful remedy. Grantor will pay to Beneficiary upon demand all expenses, including receiver's 

fees, reasonable attorneys' fees, costs and agent's compensation, incurred pursuant to the 

provisions contained in this paragraph 7 and all such expenses shall be secured by this Deed of 

Trust and shall bear interest at the rate of twelve percent (12%), or the highest rate permitted by 

law, whichever is less, per annum from the date advanced until paid. 

8. No Waiver of Default or Remedy. No delay or forbearance by Beneficiary in 

exercising any or all of its rights under this Deed of Trust or rights otherwise afforded by law 

shall operate as a waiver thereof or preclude the exercise thereof during the continuance of any 

default as set forth herein or in the event of any subsequent default hereunder, and all such rights 

shall be cumulative. In case Beneficiary or Trustee voluntarily or otherwise shall become a party 

to any suit or legal proceeding to protect the Property or to protect the lien of this Deed of Trust, 



Trustee and Beneficiary shall be indemnified and saved harmless and shall be reimbursed by 

Grantor for any amounts paid, including all costs, charges and reasonable attorneys' fees 

incurred in any such suit or proceeding, and those amounts shall be secured by this Deed of Trust 

and its payment enforced as if it were a part of the original debt. 

9. Notice. Any notice required or permitted to be given shall be deemed to have 

been given if and when sent by prepaid registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, 

addressed to: 

Grantor: 

Beneficiary: 

Minges Bottling Group 
c/o Jeff Minges 
PO Box520 
Ayden, NC 28513 

Craven County Board of Commissioners 
c/o County Manager 
406 Craven Street 
New Bern, North Carolina 28560 

Craven County Economic Developer 
406 Craven Street 
New Bern, North Carolina 28560 

Sumrell Sugg, Attorneys 
Attn: Jimmie B. Hicks, Jr. or Arey W. Grady, III 
Post Office Drawer 889 
New Bern, North Carolina 28563-0889 

or at such other address as Grantor or any Beneficiary may designate in writing to the other from 

time to time. 

10. Continuance Upon Partial Foreclosure. The obligations of the Note, this Deed 

of Trust and the Agreement shall continue until the entire indebtedness secured herein is paid, 

notwithstanding any action or actions of partial foreclosure which may be brought to recover any 

amount or amounts for installments of principal, taxes, assessments, levies, charges, insurance 

premiums or other amounts due and payable under the provisions of the Note, this Deed of Trust 

and the Agreement. 



11. Grantor's Covenant of Performance as Lessor. Grantor will faithfully perform 

the covenants of the lessor contained in any present or future lease by it of any part or all of the 

Property, and in pursuance thereof, will neither do anything nor neglect to do anything, nor 

permit anything to be done which would cause the modification or termination (other than for 

tenant default) of any of said leases, or of the obligation of any tenant, his or its successors and 

assigns, or the rents provided for therein. To the extent permitted by law, all leases shall be 

subordinate or superior to the lien of this Deed of Trust, at the election of Beneficiary. To the 

extent permitted by law, if at any time there is any conflict between any provision of this Deed of 

Trust and any provision of the aforesaid leases, then such provision of this Deed of Trust shall 

govern and apply. 

12. Assignment of Leases and Rents. Grantor agrees not to enter into any leases 

affecting the Property without the prior written consent of Beneficiary. If Grantor enters into any 

such leases, Grantor hereby assigns and sets over to Beneficiary all leases and all rents and 

security deposits hereafter accruing from the Property as additional security for the indebtedness 

secured hereby, and Beneficiary is given a prior and continuing lien thereon. Grantor hereby 

appoints Beneficiary its attorney to collect such rents with or without suit, and to apply the same, 

less expenses of collection, to said indebtedness and to repairs in such manner as Beneficiary 

may elect; provided, that until there occurs a default by Grantor in the performance of its 

agreements and undertakings under this Deed of Trust or under the Note, Grantor may continue 

to collect and enjoy said rents as they fall due without accountability to Beneficiary. This 

assignment and power of attorney shall apply to all leases, security deposits, rentals and other 

amounts received from tenants in the future, whether by present or by future owners of the 

Property; shall be in addition to other remedies herein provided for in event of default; and may 

be put into effect independently or concurrently with any of such remedies, but no liability shall 

attach to Beneficiary on account of failure or inability to collect any such rents. 

13. Severability. If any clauses or provisions contained in this Deed of Trust shall 

operate or would prospectively operate to invalidate this Deed of Trust in whole or in part, then 

such clauses and provisions only shall be held for naught, as though not contained in this Deed of 

Trust, and the remainder of this Deed of Trust shall remain operative and in full force and effect. 



14. Definition of Terms. The words "Grantor," "Trustee" and "Beneficiary" shall 

include all individuals, corporations and any and all other persons or entities, and the respective 

heirs, executors, administrators, legal representatives, successors and permitted assigns of the 

parties hereto; and all those holding under any of them, and the pronouns used herein shall 

include, when appropriate, either gender and both singular and plural, and the word "Note" shall 

also include one or more notes and the grammatical construction of sentences shall conform 

thereto. The term "Beneficiary" and the phrase "holder of the Note secured hereby" shall be 

treated as interchangeable. 

15. Security Agreement. Grantor hereby grants to Beneficiary to secure payment 

and performance of the indebtedness evidenced by the Note a security interest in all portions of 

the Property that are or are deemed to be personal property and not a part of the realty. Grantor 

covenants and agrees that the terms and conditions of this Deed of Trust, insofar as they govern 

the relationships between Grantor on the one hand and Trustee and Beneficiary on the other, 

shall be deemed to apply appropriately as the terms and conditions of a Security Agreement 

under the Uniform Commercial Code (the "UCC") as adopted in North Carolina, the lien of 

which shall be perfected by filing financing statements showing the Beneficiary's interest as a 

lienholder or creditor with respect to any class of items constructed, installed, placed, planted or 

growing on the Property or related to or arising out of the operation of the Property and 

described in any UCC financing statements filed by or on behalf of Beneficiary. In the event of 

default, Beneficiary, as secured party, and Grantor, as debtor, shall have, without limitation, all 

of the rights and remedies provided for in the UCC. 

16. Subrogation of Beneficiary to Rights of Third Parties. Beneficiary shall be 

subrogated to the claims and liens of all parties whose claims or liens are discharged or paid by 

Beneficiary as provided in paragraph 3 above. 

17. Releases and Extensions. Without affecting the liability of any person (other 

than any person released pursuant to the provisions of this paragraph) for payment of any 

indebtedness secured hereby, and without affecting the priority or extent of the security title 

hereof upon any property not specifically released pursuant hereto, Beneficiary may at any time 

and from time to time (a) release any person liable for payment of any indebtedness secured 



hereby; (b) extend the time or agree to alter the terms of payment of any of the indebtedness; (c) 

accept additional security of any kind; (d) release any portion of the Property; or (e) consent to 

the creation of any easement on or over the Property or any covenants restricting the use or 

occupancy thereof. 

18. Further Documentation. At any time, and from time to time, upon request by 

Beneficiary, Grantor will make, execute and deliver or cause to be made, executed and delivered, 

to Beneficiary any and all other further instruments, certificates and other documents, including 

without limitation financing statements with respect to all additions and replacements of the 

Property, as may be necessary in order to effectuate, complete, enlarge or perfect or to continue 

and preserve the obligation of Grantor under the Note and the priority of this Deed of Trust. 

Upon any failure by Grantor to execute and deliver such instruments, certificates and other 

documents within thirty (30) days after receipt of written request therefor, Beneficiary may 

make, execute and record any and all such instruments, certificates and documents for and in the 

name of Grantor and Grantor hereby irrevocably appoints Beneficiary the agent and attorney-in

fact of Grantor so to do. 

19. Governing Law. This agreement is delivered and is intended to be performed in 

the State of North Carolina and shall be construed in accordance with the laws of said State. 

20. Election of Remedies. The rights of Trustee and Beneficiary, granted and arising 

under the clauses and covenants contained in this Deed of Trust, the Note and the Agreement, 

shall be separate, distinct and cumulative of other powers and rights herein granted and all other 

rights which Trustee and Beneficiary may have in law or equity, and none of them shall be in 

exclusion of the others; and all of them are cumulative to the remedies for collection of 

indebtedness, enforcement of rights under this Deed of Trust, the Note and the other Loan 

Documents, and preservation of security as provided at law. No act of Trustee or Beneficiary 

shall be construed as an election to proceed under any one provision, or an election of remedies 

to the bar of any other remedy allowed at law or in equity. 

21. Condemnation. Grantor agrees to notify Beneficiary immediately in writing of 

the commencement of any eminent domain or condemnation proceedings affecting the Prope1iy. 

All monies and awards payable as damages and/or compensation, for the taking of title to or 



possession of, or for damages to, or on account of change of grade affecting, any portion of the 

Property by reason of any condemnation, eminent domain, change of grade, or other proceeding 

shall at the sole option and discretion of Beneficiary be paid to Beneficiary, unless otherwise 

expressly agreed in writing between Grantor and Beneficiary. Such moneys and awards are 

hereby assigned to Beneficiary, and judgment therefor shall be entered in favor of Beneficiary, 

and when paid may, at the option of Beneficiary: (a) be applied, in whole or in part, by 

Beneficiary upon any indebtedness (including accrued but unpaid interest and other amounts 

secured hereby or payable under the Note or hereunder) or obligation secured hereby, whether 

the same be matured or unmatured, and in such order as Beneficiary may determine; (b) be used 

in whole or in part to replace or restore the Property to a condition satisfactory to Beneficiary; (c) 

be used in whole or in part to fulfill any of the covenants contained herein as Beneficiary may 

determine; or (d) be released to Grantor. Grantor hereby covenants and agrees, upon request by 

Beneficiary, to make, execute and deliver any and all assignments and other instruments 

sufficient for the purpose of assigning the aforesaid moneys and awards to Beneficiary free, clear 

and discharged of any and all encumbrances of any kind or nature whatsoever. 

22. Liens. Grantor agrees to ensure that no liens are filed against the Property by 

reason of any services or materials supplied thereto, whether such services or materials are 

supplied to Grantor or to some person, firm or corporation in possession of all or a part of the 

Property through or under Grantor, or, if any such lien is filed against all or part of the Property, 

to, within fifteen ( 15) days after notice of the filing of any lien, cause the same to be discharged 

by deposit, bond, order or otherwise. 

23. Grantor's Estoppel. Grantor, upon ten (10) days' prior written notice, shall 

furnish Beneficiary a written statement, duly acknowledged, setting forth the unpaid principal of, 

and interest on, the indebtedness secured hereby and whether or not any offsets or defenses exist 

against such principal and interest. 

24. Grantor's Waivers. To the extent permitted by law, the Grantor hereby waives 

the right of redemption, any homestead exemptions and any right of appraisement. 

25. Hazardous Wastes. 



(a) To the best of Grantor's knowledge and except as set forth in the 

environmental reports provided to Beneficiary, (i) No Hazardous Materials (as defined below) 

are unlawfully stored or otherwise unlawfully located in, on or under the Propetiy, and no part of 

the Property, including the groundwater located thereon and thereunder, is presently unlawfully 

contaminated by any such substances; (ii) no improvements on the Property contain any friable 

asbestos or substances containing asbestos and deemed hazardous by any federal, state or local 

laws, regulations or orders respecting such material; (iii) there have been no releases by the 

Grantor or any other party of Hazardous Materials on the Property; and (iv) the foregoing 

statements are true and correct with respect to all of the real property adjoining any of the 

Property. 

(b) To the best of the Grantor's knowledge, the Property has never been used 

as or for a mine, a landfill, a dump or other disposal facility, a gasoline service station, or a 

petroleum products storage facility, and none of the Propetiy is located on a site which, pursuant 

to any Environmental Law (as defined below), has been placed on the "National Priorities List" 

or "CERCUS List" (or any similar state list) of hazardous waste sites. 

(c) To the best of Grantor's knowledge and except as set forth in the 

environmental reports provided to Beneficiary, there are no underground storage tanks situated 

on the Property and no subsurface storage tanks have ever been situated on the Property. 

(d) All activities and operations of the Grantor meet the requirements of all 

applicable Environmental Laws, as defined below. 

(e) The Grantor has never sent a Hazardous Material to a site which, pursuant 

to any Environmental Law, (1) has been placed on the "National Priorities List" of hazardous 

waste sites, or (2) which is subject to a claim, an administrative order or other request to take 

"removal" or "remedial" action, as defined in any Environmental Law, or to pay for the costs of 

cleaning up such a site. 

(f) The Grantor is not involved in any suit or proceeding and has not received 

any notice from any governmental agency or authority with respect to a release of Hazardous 



Materials and has not received notice of any claims from any person or entity relating to Property 

damage or to personal injuries from exposure to Hazardous Materials. 

(g) The Grantor has timely filed all material reports required to be filed, has 

acquired all necessary and material certificates, approvals and permits and has generated and 

maintained in all material respects all required data, documentation and records under all 

Environmental Laws. 

(h) The Grantor shall not, in violation of any Environmental Law, bring onto 

the Property any Hazardous Materials, and if any such substance is brought or found thereon, it 

shall be immediately removed, with proper disposal, and all required environmental cleanup 

procedures shall be diligently undertaken pursuant to all Environmental Laws, and the Grantor's 

obligations hereunder shall survive any foreclosure of this Deed of Trust. 

(i) The Grantor shall promptly, after any officer of the Grantor learns or 

obtains knowledge of the occurrence thereof, give written notice to the Beneficiary of receipt of 

any written notices of violation or noncompliance from any governmental agency or authority 

with respect to Environmental Laws. 

G) The Grantor shall indemnify the Beneficiary pursuant to an Environmental 

Indemnity Agreement dated the date hereof by Grantor in favor of Beneficiary, which 

Environmental Indemnity Agreement is hereby incorporated herein by reference as if fully set 

forth herein. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the indemnity of Grantor shall not extend to any 

Hazardous Materials first placed on the Property following the date that Beneficiary or its 

designee first acquires possession of the Property, whether by foreclosure, deed in lieu of 

foreclosure, or otherwise. 

(k) Beneficiary shall have, and Grantor hereby grants to Beneficiary, the right 

to enter upon the Property to verify compliance by Grantor with the terms of this paragraph 25 

and to conduct such environmental assessments and audits as Beneficiary shall deem advisable; 

provided, however, GRANTOR ACKNOWLEDGES THAT IT SHALL HAVE THE SOLE 

RESPONSIBILITY FOR ALL HAZARDOUS WASTE HANDLING PRACTICES AND 



ENVIRONMENTAL PRACTICES, AND GRANTOR HAS FULL DECISION MAKING 

POWER WITH RESPECT THERETO. 

As used herein, "Hazardous Materials" means any substances or materials (i) which are 

or become defined as hazardous wastes, hazardous substances, pollutants, contaminants or toxic 

substances under any Environmental Law; (ii) which are toxic, explosive, corrosive, flammable, 

infectious, radioactive, mutagenic or otherwise hazardous and are or become regulated by any 

governmental agency or authority; (iii) the presence of which require investigation or 

remediation under any Environmental Law or common law; (iv) which are deemed to constitute 

a nuisance, a trespass or pose a health or safety hazard to persons or neighboring properties; 

(v) which include, without limitation, underground or aboveground storage tanks, whether 

empty, filled or partially filled with any substance; and/or (vi) which contain, without limitation, 

asbestos, polychlorinated biphenyls, urea formaldehyde foam insulation, petroleum 

hydrocarbons, petroleum derived substances or waste, crude oil or any fraction thereof, nuclear 

fuel, natural gas or synthetic gas. 

As used herein, "Environmental Laws" shall mean any and all federal, state and local 

laws, statutes, ordinances, rules, regulations, permits, licenses, approvals, guidances, 

interpretations, orders of courts and governmental agencies or authorities and all other legal 

requirements relating to the protection of human health or the environment, including, but not 

limited to, requirements pertaining to the manufacture, processing, distribution, use, treatment, 

storage, disposal, transpmiation, handling, repmiing, licensing, permitting, investigation or 

remediation of Hazardous Materials. Environmental Laws include, without limitation, the 

Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act (42 U.S.C. § 9601 et. 

seq.) ("CERCLA"), the Hazardous Material Transportation Act (49 U.S.C. § 1801 et. seq.), the 

Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (42 U.S.C. § 6901 et. seq.) ("RCRA"), the Federal 

Water Pollution Control Act (33 U.S.C. § 1251 et. seq.), the Clean Air Act ( 42 U.S.C. § 7401 et. 

seq.), the Toxic Substances Control Act (15 U.S.C. § 2601 et. seq.), the Safe Drinking Water Act 

( 42 U.S.C. § 300, et. seq.), the Environmental Protection Agency's regulations relating to 

underground storage tanks ( 40 C.F.R. Parts 280 and 281 ), and the Occupational Safety and 

Health Act (29 U.S.C. § 651 et. seq.) ("OSHA"), as such laws have been or are in the future 



amended or supplemented and any analogous future federal, or present or future applicable state 

or local statutes, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder. 

26. Captions. All captions used herein are for organizational purposes only and in no 

way limit, expand or otherwise affect the meaning or effect of the provisions hereof. 

[Remainder of page is left blank intentionally.] 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor has executed this Deed of Trust and Security 

Agreement as of the day and year first above written. 

NORTH CAROLINA 

CRAVEN COUNTY 

By: 

GRANTOR: 

MINGES BUILDING ACCOUNT, LLC, 
A NORTH CAROLINA LIMITED LIABILITY 
COMPANY 

Name: ____________________________ _ 

Title: 

I, the undersigned Notary Public of the County of ______ and State of North 

Carolina, do hereby certify that personally appeared before me 

this day and acknowledged (i) that he/she is the of MINGES BUILDING 

ACCOUNT, LLC, a limited liability company, and (ii) that by authority duly given and as the 

act of such limited liability company, he signed the foregoing instrument in the name of such 

limited liability company on such limited liability company's behalf as its act and deed. 

WITNESS my hand and notarial seal, this day of July, 2014. 

My Commission Expires: NOTARY PUBLIC 

NOTARY SEAL/STAMP MUST APPEAR 
LEGIBLY IN ABOVE BOX 



EXIDBITA 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 



PROMISSORY NOTE 

$67,000.00 New Bern, North Carolina 

July_, 2014 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the receipt of which is acknowledged, Minges Building 

Account, LLC, a North Carolina limited liability company (the "Borrower") promises to pay to 

Craven County, a North Carolina unit of local government( the "Lender"), or order, at such other 

place as the legal holder hereof may designate in writing, the principal sum of SIXTY SEVEN 

THOUSAND AND N0/100 DOLLARS ($67,0000.00), as provided herein.The entire unpaid 

principal balance of this Noteshall be due and payable on December 31, 2016. 

The principal balance of this Note thereon shall be payable upon a default by Borrower 

under theAgreement Conveying Real Property for Economic Development Purposes between 

Borrower and Lender dated as of July_, 2014 (the "Agreement"), the terms and conditions of 

which are incorporated in this Note by reference: It is agreed that Borrower and Lender are not 

partners or joint venturers, but that Lender is a creditor and Borrower is a debtor under this Note. 

The indebtedness evidenced by this Note may be prepaid, in whole or in part, at any time without 

penalty. 

This Note is secured by a Deed of Trust and Security Agreement (the "Deed of Trust") 

dated as of July_, 2014, executed and delivered by Borrower to Jimmie B. Hicks, Jr., Trustee for 

the benefit of Lender, conveying certain real estate and other property described therein, and duly 

recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds of Craven 8ounty, North Carolina. The Deed of 

Trust will be subordinate at all -times to ~y financing obtained by Borrower (i) to purchase the 

property described in the Deed of Trust, (ii) construct improvements on the property described in 

the Deed of Trust, or (iii) refinance any debt related to items (i) and (ii) above. If necessary, Lender 

agrees to execute an agreement subordinating the lien of its Deed of Trust as required in the 

immediately preceding sentence. 

Upon the occurrence of any default under the Agreement and the expiration of any 

applicable notice and cure period specified in the Agreement, Lender shall have the right, at its 

option and election, to accelerate the indebtedness evidenced by this Note and declare the entire 

principal balance immediately due and payable in full. Upon such acceleration by Lender, 

Borrower promises to pay the full principal amount of this Note in accordance with the terms of the 



Agreement, together with all costs and expenses incurred in connection with the collection or 

attempted collection of this Note and the protection of the security for this Note, including 

reasonable attorneys' fees, whether or not suit is instituted. As used in this Note, the term 

"reasonable attorneys' fees" shall mean those fees actually charged by attorneys selected by Lender, 

based upon their standard rates, as opposed to any statutory presumption that may then be in effect 

in the State of North Carolina. 

All parties to this Note, whether principals, sureties, guarantors or endorsers, hereby waive 

presentment for payment, demand, protest and notice of dishonor, and all defenses on the ground of 

extension of time for the payment hereof, which may be given by Lender to them or any of them, or 

to anyone who has assumed the payment of this Note. 

No delays on the part of Lender in exercising any right under this Note or under theLoan 

Agreement shall operate as a waiver thereof or preclude the exercise thereof at any time during the 

continuance of any default or during the continuance of any subsequent default. 

This Note may not be modified or terminated orally.This Note shall be construed and 

enforced in accordance with the laws of the State ofNorth Carolina. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Borrower has executed this Note as of the day and year first 

above written. 

MINGES BUILDING ACCOUNT, LLC, 
a North Carolina Limited Liability Company 

By: 

Name: --------------------------------

Title: 



NORTH CAROLINA 

CRAVEN COUNTY 

I, the undersigned Notary Public of the County of ______ and State of North 

Carolina, do hereby certify that personally appeared before me 

this day and acknowledged (i) that he/she is the of MINGES BUILDING 

ACCOUNT, LLC, a limited liability company, and (ii) that by authority duly given and as the 

act of such limited liability company, he/she signed the foregoing instrument in the name of such 

limited liability company on such limited liability company's behalf as its act and deed. 

WITNESS my hand and notarial seal, this day of July, 2014. 

My Commission Expires: NOTARY PUBLIC 

NOTARY SEAL/STAMP MUST APPEAR 
LEGIDL Y IN ABOVE BOX 



AGitEEMENT FOR PUnCHASE AND SALE Oli' REAL PROPRRTY 

ui'Attolr'~ Norlh Carolina Association 
of REAL TORS® 

THIS AGREEMENT, including any uud all uddcnda lttlnched hereto C'Agrecment"), is by and between 
Minges Buildl.ng l\cco,l';!!_.\u_l:J:~...~~--··-·--·--~-----··~···---.. ·· ..................... __ _ 

a(n} ----.. ~.!:!~,mited Liability Company __ ("Buyer"), and 
(individual or Stnlc of formation and type of Ct\tity) 

........... _ .. _, ______ ... Cra'IIO!!~..f.2~.~-~y __ ...... ·----~-~----
11{ n) _____________ _g_Qvern.m~_n!:.-entitY, ________ (''Seller"). 

(individual £>r State of formation nnd l>'Pe of entity) 

FOK AND IN CONSlDERATION OF THE MUTUAL PROMISES SET FORTH HEREJN ANI) OTHER GOOD AND VALUABLE 
CONSIDERATION, THE RECEJPT AND SUFFICJBNCY OF WHICH ARE HEREBY ACKNOWLEDOBD, THE PARTIES 
HERETO AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Tct·ms nnd Definitions: The terms li~ted below shall huve the respective meuning given them ~ts set fot1h adjacent to each 
term. 

{a) ''Pmuertru: (Address) !±.L~.EEOrate Lane, New Bern, .!i~ ... ~.Q.§§.~---~--,--~-~-·-----· ----··------·
~raven County_~~!: 8-21 7-5004 ···-·--·-----·-~·--·~ .. ---- --~-···-~--------.. -

Pint Reterence: Lot{s)______ 30 , Block or Section ............ ·------~-~-- , us :;hown on Pint Book or Slldc 
G-103-C at Page(s) ----·---·-----·· ......... ---~-.'1Faven - County,L~t)llSistill!t or... a m:n.!s. 

fXl I r this hnx is checked, ''Property" 1\hnll mcnn !hat propt~rty dcsc.l'ibcd on ExhH~H A mtached hcr¢10 and iaeorporutcd 
herewith by rer~~rcn<:e, 

(For information purposes: (i) the htx purccl number ofthe Properly is: 8-217-509,_4.,_~------- -----···------···------: 
und. (ii) some or all of the Property. consisting of upproximntcly --·-·----0 __________ ,. __ acres, is de~cribcd in Deed Book 
____ 1604 _,Page No. ----~l..Q.!Q Cr~ven County.) 

tugt.:lhcr with an buildings nrld improvements thereon and all fi~lures and appurtenances thereto and an personal pmpert}•, if il.ll}', 
itcmizml on ExhiuU A. 

$ ___ , ____ ..J.l..J. 000. 00 (b) "£Yrcbase PricCl" shall mean the smn of ~j.p~~Y.:--'J.'h:reG ·r_h_o_u_s_a_n_d _________________ _ 

~---~--------~------··-----····~--·--· 

[}{IJ'Uble Oil tltefollowblg terms: 

(i) "Em·n~\:bw~ shall menn ---------·~-- li'i v~_ih~E.!:E!::..;.n.;:;..d _____ _ Dollar:-. 
or terms as follows: -----·-.. ·-- -~-- --~-----------·· .. -----·--~···--·---.·----·----· 

Upon this Agret!ment hecuming 11 contract in ncconhmcc with Sccli<.111 14, the Eames( M{)llCy shall he 
promptly deposited in escrow with -~-~-~-·gentu):'y_J_L. Zaytoun::..~!=t~•-~-~t! ....... -·~--- (muue nf 
person/cntily with whom deposited), to be applied ns pnrt payment of the Purchase Price of 1hc Pl'opcrty m 
Closing, or disbursed as agreed upon under the provisions of Section l 0 h\!rcin. 

Page I of8 

This fol'm joinlly npptO\'Cd by: 
North Cnroli a lhu· Association 

STANIJARD I<'OUM 580-T 
Re\'ised 71201~' 

©7/20}3 North Curolit A dation of REAL TORS®, Inc. 

Buyer fnitials Seller fnitiftls ----~ 
t'l:t.lltlH\' 2r 7-l~!<l.,n d.'ml'"'·"~.ll~ :\11u • Fr"r.t il<~t 1\("'v lkm.l'\l'la5t.ll l'l~·t•·· ?\1.~.\'1 ~·I}•} 1'~•: H2-t.ll·HIS 
!\li(:,~;t K~·r·•• f>roooced \'•llh .ci~l'olm~OJ tipl.zy,}i( lU07o r:rllct:o J.,~:'« Aoa!i. f'r•lS.ll. M·~l!'!)~l\ ~80?11 '\Wtt.t•ol.o!):, ro•I• 



$ 

IX} ANY r~ARNEST MONEY DI~POSflls£> llY JHJ\'~R IN A TRlJST ACCOUNT MA \' HE 
PLACED lN AN INTEREST BEARING TRUST ACCOUNT, AND: (check ouly ONTS bo.r) 

0 ANY IN1'EfU!:S'l' EAUNED THEUEON SHAI..L nE APPUED AS PART PA YMUNT OF 
'I'HE PURCBAS££ t•RJCI~ OF THR PHOI>Ell'fV AT CLOSING, on DISBlJltSl~D AS AGUJ~gn 
UPON UNDER THE PROVISIONS Olr SECTION 10 II£RElN. (Duyva·'s Tuxpayel" Idcntitl<.·ntio11 

Numbet· h-1: ·---··--·-··--·---·····---· ....... ) 

!&) ANY INTEREST EARNED THEREON SHALL BltLONG TO TUE ACCOUNT HOLor.:,n 
IN CONSIDERATION OF THlt ltXI'I~NSES lNCURilED UY 1\•IAlNTAINING SUCH ACCOUNT 
AND RECOUDS ASSOCIA TRD THI~REWI'fH. 

(ii) Pr2c~cds of n ngw loan in the amount or--~--
Doll an~ 

for a term of ___ yenr~>. with un amnrtizntinn period not to exceed --·- year~. ut rm interest mh.~ 

not to exceed -----~"- % per unnum with mortgage loau discount poinls not w exceed -----~-·-- o/o 
of the loan mnuunl, or !iUt:h other terms us may be set forth on Exhibit B. Buym· stulll pa}' all costs 
nssocinted with nny such loan. 

:) --·---------------- (iii) Oeliycrv of n promissory note secur<:d l>y o deed (>f trust, snid promissory note in the amount of 

$ 68,000.00 

-·------ --------·- ·--·---.. --------~------·· ... _ ... ·--~ _ Dolltlrs 
being payable over a term of years, wi(h m1 :uuorti1.iUion p~rintl of yenrs, payable in 
monthly inst~lhnents of principal. together with accrued interelit on the- outstanding principal bnlnm~e nt 
lhe mte of ____ percent(_~---------· %) per annum in the 
mnount of$ --·.with the first p1incipttl payment beginning on the first day of lhc 
month nexl succeeding lhe dut~ uf Clv~ing, or such other tcnns us muy be set forlh on EKhibtt 8. At any 
time, the promissory note may be prepaid in whole or in pat1 withoot penalty und without fur\h~.r intercl\t 
on the amounts prepaid from the date of such prcpuyment. (NOTI~~ In the C\'ent of Uuye1·'s subsequent 
dcfunll \t(JOR n promissory nole tmd deed ur u·ust given luweuodcr, Sellm·'s t'Cn&cdil1S 0\U)' he limited 
to l'orcclosuru or the Pt·opol·tj•, If Ute deed of trust gh,en het•etulder Is subordinated to senior 
Onuncing, the mnleriul tm·ms of such finnncing must he srl ((.ucth on gxhibit B. If such sculo1· 
t'innncing is subsC(JOenUy t'oJ•ccloscd, the Seller moy hnvc rto remedy to t'CCO\'CI' under th~ note.) 

(iv) Assumntion of thut unpaid obligntion of Seller secured by a deed of tmsl on the Properly, such 
obligation hnving nn outstMdiug principul balance of S nnd evidenced 
by a note bearing interest at the rate of . percent 
( %) per annum, tmd a current pnymcnt amounl of$. . The obligations 
of Buyer under this Agreement arc comlitioucd upon Buyer being ahle to assume the exi~ting htn 
described above. If such nssumpLion re<Juircs the lender's approval, Buyer ugrees to usc its besl etTorts to 
secure such approval <tnd to advise Seller immediately upo" receipt of the lender's decision. Appwvnl 
must he gnmtcd on or befon~ ·---·------.. ---------- . On or before this dnte. Buyer has the right 
Lo terminate this Agreement for failure to be nble to assume th~ loan described :\bovc by delivering to 
Seller wriltcn notice of tcrmhmtion by the above date, lime being of the l!SNrmce. rr Buyer delivers such 
notice, this Agmcmcnt shull be nun and void and Eumest Money shall he refunded 10 Buyer. If Uuyt-r 
l)lils to delive-r such n<.llice, then Buyer will he decrned to h:tvt! waived 1h1~ lmm eomlilion. Unless 
r>rovith::d otherwi:;e in Se(:tiOn 3 hereof. Buyer slmll pay all reel\ and C()Stli <\SSl)Cillled with fill)' Ml~h 
assumption, including nl\y aHsumplion fee chmg~~d by th<~ h~mlcr. At or before Clusing, Seller shall nssigl\ 
to Buyer <Ill interest of Seller i11 any currc.nl rct;crvcs or escrows held by the lender, nny property 

management company nnd/or Seller, lncluding but not limited to nny tenant improvement reser·ves, 
lensing l:ommission reserves, secmity depostts and op~rnting or <:Hpit;\1 r~~scrvcs. for whit:~• Seller shall he 
credited said nmou11ts nt Cklsing. 

(v) Gnfih, halanceofPurchnsc Price, at Closing in the :unouut of t;;ight.y-Eight Thousa~~·--·

-~-------~--~·-·-·· 
--- Dollarx. 

~ Pnge2of8 

Buyer ltlitloL<p: ___ \. _____ Selle~·initinls -··-··-- ·---- STANllArtn FORM 580·1' 
neviscd 7/'1.0 13 

«) 7/2013 
CrommCo~:nty Produced with zinforrn®by ,;:pLooix t6070 Filtann Milo Road.l'rli!>OI, Mir.hignn480lW l.'f)'IW.i'1JM9k.£illll 



DocuSigo Envelope ID: 24C391CC.7E56-4EDEv871 F-429C5C433B70 

(c) "Closing" shall mean the date and time of recording of the deed. Closing shalt occur on or before 
September ll, ~p14 or ... ____ ..... 

(d) "Contract Date*' means fhe date this Agreement has been fully executed by both Buyer and Seller. 

(e) "Examination Period" shall mean the period beginning on tho frrst day after the Contract Date and extending through 

through 11 :59pm (based upon time at the locale of th.c Property) on 
August. 2l,_ 20.14 . ; 

TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE AS TO THE 'EXAMINATION PERIOD. 

(f) ~'Bmkerfs)'~ shall mean: 
----.~-..------,........,~----~-_,...,.,...,.._,......--.......... ----...,.------·("Listing Agencyu) • 
.,..----~~-------=---------·~---·("Listing Agent"- License# ---------· _) 
Acting as: a Seller's Agent.; Cl Dual Agent 
and Centurv. 21 Zaytoun-Raines ... ("Selling Agency•'), 

Mioha~l.. Raines ("Selling Agent''- Li(,-ense # 217510 ) 
Acting as: I!) Buyer's Agent; Q Seller's (Sub) Agent; . ···a Dua1 Agent 

(g) "Seller's Notice Address., shall be as follows: 

except as same may be changed pursuant io Section 12 .. 

(h) "Buyer'§ Notice Address" shall be as follows: 
312 S Front. St . 
New Bern., NC ZS!;60 ..... 

Ph (.252) 63~3..:.306.9 / Fax (262) 6~3-5_!L~ ·......--....,._.--.-~~--------------
~xcept as same inay be crumged pursuant to Section 12. 

fXI (i} If this bl~k i.s marked, additional terms of this Agreement are set forth on Exhibit B attached hereto and incorporated herein 
by reference. (Note: Undu North Curolinu Jsnvt real estate agents are not permitted to draft conditions. or contingencies 
to tbis Agreement.) 

Section 2. Sale of Property and Payment of Purchase Price: Seller agrees to sell and Buyer agrees to buy the Property for the 
Purchase Price. 

Section 3. Proration of Expenses and Payment of Costs: Seller and Buyer agree that all pl'operty taxes {on a calendar year basis). 
leases, rents. mortgage payments and utilities or My other assumed liabilities as detailed on attached Exhibit B, if any. shall be 
prorated as <>f the date of Closing. Seller shall pay for preparation of a. deed and all other documents necessary to p~tfonn Selter1s 
obligations under this Agreement. excise tax (revenue stamps). any deferred or rollback taxes, and other conveyance f-ees or taxes 
required by law~ and the following: 
See E~ibit l3 

uyer Initials~_ 
Producerl ~lth ~by zipi.Dgix 18070 fl...,, 1\!lle Rood, Fraser, Mlchigao 48026 

Page 3 of8 

Seller Initials ~--- ___ _ STANDARD FORM 580wT 
Revised 712013 

©7/2013 
Craven County 



Uuyer shaH pay recording cosh;, wsl!i of nny title :mnrch, lille insurance, surv~y. the cost of nny inspet:tions or invcstigation:i 
undertaken hy Buyer under this Agrc~menl and the followil)g: 

·------~---------·---····---· .. -----·-···-··------·- .. ------~ .. --·-···-···--· .. -·-·--·-······----·--
......... ·----~------------------ ·------·•-----~----- ·--~--••M--••••---·•• •• ._ """ • 
Each pnrty shnll pay its own nUomey's fees. 

Section 4. Deliveries: Seller ngrees to usc bc!ll efforts to deli vet· to Buyer as soon ns rcasonahly possible un~r tht! CuntnH~t Date copic~ 
Cll' ull information relming to the Property in possession of or nvailnhle to Seller, hwluding but not limited to: title insurant'e polici<.~\ 
(and copies or atty doc,rmenls refet·cnccd therein), surveys, soil test reports, environmental surveys or reports, site plans, civil drawings, 
huH ding plans, tnllinlenance records and copies of all presently effective warranties or service conlracls related to the Ptopc1ty. Seller 
authorizes ( l) any aUomey presently or previously representing Seller to reJense and disclose nny title insurance policy in such 
attorney's file to Buyer <md both Buyer's nnd Seller's agents ami uHomeys; und (2) Lhe Prup!!rly's lille inllurer or its agent to rcl~:ts~ and 
disclo:-;c uU materials in the Property's title insurer's (or title iusurer's agent's) lile 10 Huyer and both Buyer's and Seller's agenls and 
auomeys. Jf Buyer does not consummate the Closing for any reason olh<lr thuu Seller default, then Buyer shnll return to Seller all 
mnterials delivered by Seller to Buyer pursuunt to this Section 4 {or Section 7, if ttpplicable), if nny, und shall, upon Setler's request, 
provide to Seller copies of (subject tu the ownership nnd copyright interests of the prcpi\rcr thereol) uny und nll smdics, reports, survey!o 
nnd other inrormation rcluting directly to the Property prepared by or at the request of Buyer, ils employees and ngenls, and shall 
deliver to Seller. upon the release of the Earnest Money, col)ies of Hll of \he foregoing wirhout uny warranty or representation by Buyer 
as to the contents, nccumcy or cnrreclnel\s thcrco[ 

S{'ction 5. E\'idcncc of Tille: Seller agree:- to convey fcc simple murkctablc und insurable tillc to the Propet1y without cxccplion fm 
mechanics' liens, free and clear of all liens. encumbrance!! nnd defects of title other than: (a) zoning onlinanctJs tlffectiltg the Pmpci'Ly, 
(b) Leases (if apj>licable) and (c) matters of record existing at the Cuntrm:t Date lhat are not obje<.:tctl tu hy Buyer prior to the end of tht! 
H~nminalion J>criud ("PertniUed Exceptions"); provided that Seller shull he 1-equired to satisfy. nt or llrior to Closing, nny encumbram:cs 
that may be satisfied by the pu}'ment of n fixed sum of mone}', such as dced!i of trusl, mortgages or stalutory liens. Seller shall not enlcr 
into or record atl)' instrument that nffccts the Properly (or any pet·sonnl property li~ted on ExhihH A) aflcr the Contract Date withoul the 
prior written consent of Buyer. which consent ~hnll not be unroasonnhly withheld, co!lditioned or delayed. 

Section 6. Conditions: 11\is Agreement and the rights and obligations of the parties under this Agreement arc hereb)• mmlc cxpre:.J..Iy 
conditiOI_lcd upon f\tlfilhnent (or waiver by Buyer, whether explicit ot' implied) of the following c<.)fldili<ms: 

(n) New Loan: The Buyer must be nblc to obtain the loan, if nny, refc~renct~d in sc~ction l(b}(ii). Buyer must he able lo obl<~in 
~~ linn commitment for this luau on or before _ ·-· , effective through the date of Closin!!,. 
Buyer agrees to use its best ctlbrts lo ~ecure such commitment and to advise Seller immcdintcly upon receipt or lender's decision. On m· 
before the nbove date. Buyer has the right to tenninutc. this Agreement for fnilure to obmin Lhc loan referenced in Sccti<.'n l(b)(ii) by 
deli"~ring to Seller written notice of tenninn£lon by the abov~ date, tr'me being of tl1e (!S.'~etwe. If Buyer delivers sudt notie~, this 
Agrecnumt ~hall be null mtd void und Eamest Money shall be refunded to Buyer. If Buyer faits to deliver liUch notice, then B\lycr will 
be deemed to huve waived the loan condition. Notwith:-;tunding the foregoing, after tlw. nbovc dnte, Seller may l'equcsl in writing from 
Buy~r n copy of the commitment letter. If Buyer fails to provide Seller n copy of the commitment letter within five (5) duyx of receipt 
of St~ller's reqtiCSl, then Seller may terminate this Agreement by writte11 notice to Buyer at nny time thereafter, provided Seller has 001 

then r~ccived a copy of &he cummilment letter, and Buyer shall receive~\ rctum of Earl'\cst Money. 

(b) OunJH1cntlnn for Ji'immcing: Jf Buyer is to ussume nny ittdehtedness in comw<.:tion with 1)aymcut of rhe Pnrchww. Prkt.~. 
Buyer agrees to use its besl efforts lo qualify for the assumption. Should Buyer fail lo qualify, Bu}•er shnll notify Seller in wriling 
immediately upon lendds decision, whereupon this Agreement shall tcnninntc, nnd Buyer shnU l'cccivc a rch.tlll of Earnest Money. 

(c) Title Examinntion: After the Contrnct Date, Buyer shall, at Buyer's expense, cause a title cxmuim1tion to be made of (he 
Property before the end of the Bxnmination Period. In the event thut such title examination shall show thnt Seller's title is not fcc 
simple mHrketuble und insurable, subject only to Pennittt!d Exceptions. then Buyer shall promptly nolify Seller in writing of nll such 
title defects and exceptions, in no case lmer lhun the end of the Exumint~tion Period, nnd Seller shall have thirty (30) days w (!Urc :mid 
noticed dt}lecb;. If Sel1cr doe:-; no! cure the defects or objections within thirty (30) duys of notice lh(~reof, then Bu)•er muy terminatt~ this 
Agreement and receive a retum of Earnest Monc)' (notwithstanding that the Exmninulion Period may have expired}. If Buyer is to 
purchnso title insurance, the insuring compnny must be lkensed to do business in the stale in whil!h 1he. Property iii loetucd. Title to the 
Property must be insurable nl regular ratu:-;, subject only to standard exceptions und l'crmittcd Exc(lptions. 

(d) ~nnrt~ Cun!!!Hruu If the Property is not in ~uhstmnially the same contlilinn ut Closing Hli of the date of lhe (~ftl-r, 

remmnable wear tmd teal' excepted, then the Buyer may (i) terminate this Agreement and receive o rctum of the Ef\mcst Money or (ii} 
procc(!d to Closing wht~rcupon Buyer $hnll be entitled to receive, in addition to the Property, nn)' of the Seller's immnmcc proc\~t~ds 
payable on account o c damage or destruction upplicable to the Property. 

Page 4 of8 

Seller Initials -~--~- ·------·--

Proo~,;ead with ZlpFotm by zlpLogix 18070 Flflccm Mife Road, Fraset. Michigan 48026 w~v..l.iDloglx.cqm 

STANDARD FORM 580-T 
u.e.,•lscd 7/2013 

© ?/ZOt:' 
Cmvlln Cutull)' 



(c) Inspections: Buyer, its agents Ol' representative$, al Bu}'er's expense und a1 reasonaolc times during normnl business 
hours, shall have the right tn enter upon the Property fur the purpost~ of inspecting. l~xamining. pe!'fl)tming soil horing and other tcliling. 
conducting timber cruh;es, and surveying the Property. Bu~er shnll conduct nll such on-site inspection:;, cxumim\lion~. soil boring and 
other tc~>ling, timhcr cruises und ~urve)•ing or the Propt~rty in n g(Hid und wnrkmtmlikt>: nwmwr, shull n!pair any damul:!c to the Prop(!J1y 
caused by Buyer's entry and on-site inspections and .shnll condm:t same iu n manner Lhal doc~ nut UIKe:txonahly interfere with Selkr's or 
uny temmt's usc und cnjoymcnl of the Properly. Jn that respect, Buyc.r shall muke rcns(ttwbk ci'Jbrtfi to undertake on-site inspections 
uutside of the hours uny tenant's business is open lo the public and :-;han give prior notke lo uny u.mants or uny ~mry nnlo nny tewmt's 
portion of lhe Property l'or the purpose of cunuucting inspections. Upon Seller's request, Buyer shnll provide to Seller evideuct~ o!' 
gcuerul liability insurance. Buyer shall nlsu have a right to review und inspect alt contmcts or other ug1·cements affecting nr related 
directly to the Properly and l\hull be entitled to review such books and record~ of SeHer thal relate di(cctly to the operation nnd 
maintenance or the Property. provided. however. thnt Buyer ~>hall nell disclose any information regarding this Property (tlr any ll!mtnl 
therein) unless required by law nnd the same Rhall be regarded ns confidenlht11 to uny pcrsuu, except tu lhi uttorneys, act:uunlants, 
lenders nnd other professional advisors, in which case Buyer shnU obtuin their agreement to maintain such confidentiality. Buyer 
assumes aU responsibiliLy for the acts of itself, itN agents or representatives in exercising its rights under this Section 6(c) nnd ugrccs to 
indemnify and hold Seller hunnless from nny damages resulting therefrom. This iudemnificntion obligation of Buyer shullliurvivc. the 
Closing or cnrlicr termination of this Agreemcnl. Buyer shnll, HI Buyer's expense, promptly rl}pair any dnmage to the Properly caused 
by Buyer's entry and on-site inspections. Except as provided in Seclion 6(c) ubove. Buyer shall have from the Contract Date thmugh 
the end of the Examination Period to perfom1 the above inspections. exnmiiHttionr; and te!iling. IF ntJYEn CHOOSES NOT TO 
&>lJRCHASE THE PUOPI£RTY, l~OR ANY Rli;ASON OR NO IU~ASON, AND I,ROVIDES WRlTTgN NOTICR TO sgLLER 
THEIU~Otr PIUOR TO THE RXPIRATION Otr THE ltXA.i\'JJNATfON l)EIUOD, THEN TUIS AGJtF.EMRNT SHALL 
TgRMINATE~ AND BUYER SHALL UECEIVE A UETURN OF Till~ t•:AHNEST MONEY. 

Scetit)O 7. Le1\SC!S (Cbct:k one. of lh" following, as appfi~nblc): 

!!) If this box is checked, Seller uflinnatively r~l>resetHs and warrants that there nm no Lenses (as hc:rcinufler ddiued) 
affecting the Property. 

0 lf this box. is checked, Seller discloses that there are one or more lenses affecting the Property (ora! or written, recorded 
t)r nol - "Leases") and the following provisions ru·e hereby made a part of this Agreement. 

(a) A lisl of alll..eilses shnll be set forth on Exhibit H; 

(b) Seller f>hnll deliver copies of uny Leul)c:> to Buye1' pursuunt to Section 4 ns if the Lenses were listed therein; 

(c) Seller l'epre~-ents nnd wurrnnts that as of the Cootmcl P~ttc there nrc no current defaults (or any existing siluation which, 
wilh thu J>11ssnge of time, or the giving of t\olice, os· hoth. or nllht~ elecfh)n of either lnndlot'd m· te.mmt could constitute u defnull) eith~r 
by Seller. as hmdlord. or by any temml under any Lease ("Lease Dcfitult"). ln the evenlthere is nny Lensc Dcftwlt ns ol' the Conlrnc.~t 
Dalt\ Seller agrees co provide Buyer with n detailed dcs<:ription f)f the siluntion in tlccordnncc with Section 4. Seller ar,recs not 10 

(:ommit a Lema:. Dufault as Landlord after the Contract Oate. and agree!\ t'tu1ht~r hl notify Buyer immediately in the event n l.c<lM~ 
Ddault arises or i~ claimed, u:~sertcd or lhrc~ttt~ncd to be asserted by either Sdler or il tenant under the Lease. 

(d) Jn addition to the conditions provided in Section 6 of this Agrcem~nl. thi:i Agreement ami lhl! righls lllld obligutions of 
the pnrtics under thi:\ Agreement are he reb>• mnde expressly conditioned upon the ('~signment of Seller's inlerc:;t in any Lease to Buyer 
in form and content acceptuble to Buyer (with tenant's written cum;ent nnd acknowledgement, if required under the Lem:e). nnd Seller 
ngrccs to use it" best eff011s to effect such assignment. Any nssignmenl required under thil\ Section 7 ~hall be rC(tuired lo be delivered 
nt or before Closing by Seller in nddition to those deliveries rcq~tircd under Secl ion II of this Agreement. 

(c) Seller ugrccs to deliver an nssitvuncnt uf any Lcuse at or before Clo!\ing, with any security deposits held by Seller under any 
Leases tu be lrunsftmetl or credited to Buyer ut or boforc Closing. Seller also agrees to ex~cute and deliver (aud work diligent!}' to 
obluin any tenant signatures necessary for same) any e~toppcl certificates and subordination, nondisturbance and attornmem 
agreemcntli in such form ns Buyer may rea.'iOIHtbly request 

Secnon H. Envll'omncntnt: Seller represents and wnrrnnts that it hus no ucwal knowledge or the prescnce m disposal, eM:cpt as in 
nccorduncc with npplicuhl~ lnw, within lhc buildings or on the Property of hazardous or toxic w<.tslc or xuhslances, which an~ dcfin~d as 
those suhstnnccs. mnterial.'>, and wus(es, including, but not limil\!d to, lhnse substunct·.~. matc.riHis illld wast1!s lil\tcd in thl~ Uniwd Stuh.•.s 
Depat1mcnt of Tmnsportn(ion Hn:t.itrdous Materinls Table (49 CFR Pmt 1'72.101) or by th~ Environmt~t\1<11 Protection Ag~~ncy as 
hu;.anlous suhstan\!cs {40 CPR Part 302.4) and mnendmcnts th<..•rt~W. or such sub::tumcc.s, nHllt~rinls and wastes, which urc or become 
rcgulawd under any applicable local, stale or federal law, including, without limitnllon, any m;tlt~riHI, wmilc or !'lllb~lance whid1 i~ (i) 
petmleum, (ii} asb . :; (iii} polychlorinated biphenyls, (iv) dcsignn~~d a:; il Huznrdous Suhslnncc JHH'SU<mt to Sc<.·lion .\II of the 

/ (/ Pag~ 5 ol 8 
Buyer lnitin .. ___ Seller Initinls ___ ___ STANDAlU> Ji'OUM St.{(J:(' 

t•roduccd with lpf'orm® by zlplogix 18010 Filteen Mile Roau,l:fasar, Michigan 48026 ~'l!li\'/.7..iR;!.o9ix,com 

Revised 7/).I)(J 
© 7/Wl3 

Cmvcn Couruy 



Clenn Wntcr Act of 1977 (33 U.S.C. § 1321) or listed pursmmt to S~t:lion 307 of the Clean Wnter Act of 1977 CD lJ.S.C. § 1317), ( v) 
d~fincd tiS ll hnznrdous Wll~le pursuant to Section 1004 of 'he Resource Con~crvution nnd Rc{~ovcry Acl or 1916 (42 u.s.c. §61)03) ()!' 

(vi) defined as a hazardous subslance pursuant to Section 101 of the Comprehensive Environmentul Response. Compensation nod 
Linbility Act of I 980 (42 U.S.C. §960 l ). Seller hns 1\0 actual knowledge of ~my contamination uf the Property from sudt !;Ub!\Umc~..~s a~ 
ma)' have been disposed of or stored on neighboring tracls. · 

Section 9. Wsk of Loss!Dnmage/Repnir: Until Closing, the risk of los*' or damage to 1he Property, excepl ns olherwise proviu<HI 
he(cin, shall be borne by Seller. EKcepl us lo maintaining the Propeuy in its same condition. Sellea· .shall have nu responsibility fnr the 
rcpnlr of the Property, including any improvements, unless the pnrlim; hereto ugrec in Wriling. 

Scction 10~ l~nrnest Money Disbursement: In the event that any of the cnnditions her~to MC not sat is lied, or in thv event of a breach 
of this Agreement by Seller, then the Earnest Mmtey shall he mtumed lo nuyer, hut sut:h return shall nut M'fcct :tny other remedies 
avuilablc to Uuycr for such breach. In the event rhis ofler is ac~epted and Buyer hrcudws this Agreement, then the Earnest 1\·1oney shnll 
be forfeited, bul such forfeiture shall nut affect any other remedie.~ av<tiluhle tl~ Seller for !\ttch breach. NOTh: In \he t.wenl of n dii'JHtH~ 
between Seller and Buyer over the return ur forfciturt of Enrncst Money held in cserow by a lken~cd real cslale bn:tkcr, tht~ broker b 
required by ~late law to rcwin suid Uamcst Money in its trust or eS(!WW uccoum until it hn:; ohtained a writwn rdeast! from the parties 
consenting to ils di:.;pusilion or uutif disbur~ement is ordered by n court of compt.~lenl jlllhdiction. or altemutivcl )', tht~ pMiy holding the 
Earnest Money may deposit the dispufcd monies with the approprinte clerk of court in nccordancc with tiH~ prnvision~ of N.C.G.S. 
~93A-l2. 

Section ll, Closing: At ur before Closing, Seller shall deliver to Buyer u general wnrrauty deed untcs!\ otherwise spccifi~d un Exhibit 
B and other documents customarily executed or delivered by n seller in simitm· wmsnctions, induding without limitation, a bill of sale 
for· any personally lh;tcd on Rxhibit A. an owner's 11ffidavit, lien wuiver forms {nncl such other Jie11 rcluted documm\tl\til>tl us shall 
permit the Properly to be conveyed free and clcnr of any cJnim for mechanics' Hens) and a11on-loreign stotus affid11\'il (pursuant to the 
Foreign Jnvcstmenl in Renl Property Tax Act). and Buycl' .')hall pay to Seller the Purchase Price. At Closing. the EarnC!il Money shall be 
aJ>plied us part of the Purclmsc Price. The Closing f':ltall be conducted by 13uycr's uuornc)' ur lmndlcd in such orher mmmcr as the putlies 
hereto ma)' mutuall)' agree in writing. Possession shnll be delivered at Closing, unles::; otherwise ugreed herein. The Purchase Price luld 
other funds to he disbursed pursuant to this Agreement shall not be disl>ul'scd unlil Closing hns taken !>lace. 

Sec lion 12. Notices: Unlcs~ otherwise l>rovided herein, uU notices and nther ~ommunications which may he or ure l'equircd to be giv<.'l\ 
ur mmle- by any pony tn lhc olh~~r in conl\~ction hcNwith shnll be in writing und shall be deemed to huvo been properly given mtd 
rccdvcd on the date delivered in person OJ' depol\itcd in lhe United Stute!l muil, n~gbaercd or c.x~rlificd, n:tnrn rc(;cipl rC<Juested, (<) the 
addresses se1 out in Section l(g} as t\) Seller nnd in Sec~ion l(h) as to Buye.r, or at sudt other mfdrcs~c.'i as <;pt~dficd hy wriUt~n rwlict~ 
d~livered h\ accol'dnncc hercwilh. 

Section 13. Entirt! Agreement: Titis Agreell\ent ~~onstitules the ~mlc und e1uire ugrcement atnong the pnrtics hereto nnd no 
modit1cntion of this Agreement shall be binding unless in wliting and signed by all parties hereto. The invnlidity of one. or more 
provisions of this Agreement shall not affect the validity ul' uny other provisions hereof and this Agreement shall be construed and 
enforced as if such invalid provisions were not included. 

Section 14. EnforccnbilHy: This Agreement shall become a conlmct when signed by bolh Buyer and Seller aud su~h signintt is 
conmnmicatcd to both parties; it being expre:;sty ngrccd thnt the notice described in Section 12 il\ nut required for efi'ective 
communication for the purposes of this Secliun 14. The pnrties ucknowlcdgc and agree lltnt: (i) the initials Hnes ut the boUom of r.ach 
puge of this Agreement are merely evidence of their having reviewed the terms of each r••gc, ami (H) tht~ complete execution of sm:h 
iniliuts fines shall not be a condition of the cUectiveness of this Agremncnt. This Agremmmt shnH he binding upon and inure to th(~ 
ht~ndil of the parties, their heir:-;. successors and t~ssigns ami their personHll'Cprescutativt:\. 

Section l5. Ad\'ct·sc Jnformolion and Cotntllimtc(~ with J.nws: 

(n) Seller Knowledge: Seller has no Hclmtl knowledge of (i) wndcmnalion(s) uiTc<:ting or cunl<!!l'lfllated with respecl to the 
Property; (ii) u<:lions, suits or proceedings pending or threutencd against tht~ Property; {iii) changes contemplated in ally npplicuhh: 
laws, ordinn1tce~ or restriction~ affecting the Property; or (iv) governmental spcciul ussc.>.ssme.nts, either pending or confirmed, for 
};idcwalk, paving. wuter. l!cw~r. or other improvements on or adjoining the Property, and no pendiug or confim1cd owners' association 
speci«tl asse-o;smcnls,t~xccpt m; follows (Imen "None" or the identificntion of an)' rmmcrs relating to (i) through (iv) above, if any): 

----··---·--------.. ·-~--~--------~--
~-- ·----~~-----~--------

\:t til Page 6 of 8 
Buyer lnhials'f=-t Seller lrlilh!ls ---·-

Ptooucetl wilh zip~orm® by ziplogix f8070 Fillooo Mrlc Aoad, Ftasar. Mr<:higan 116026 ~-<'i.W...&•~ro 

STANDAlU> FOl~M SliO·T 
Revised 7/2013 

~J 7/20 IJ 
CH1\'Cn Cuunt)· 



Note~ For purposes of this Agreement, a 11continncd" special Hsscssmenl is ddlned ns an Asses~mcnt that hm; b~en npproved hy n 
govcrnmc.utul agency or an owners' association for the purposc(s) :anted, whether or not it is 1\llly payable nt tim~ of clnsing. A 
"pending" special assessment is defined as an assessment that is under fornu\l considctTttinn by i\ governing body. Seller shnll pay all 
owners' nssocintion i\li$\ellsment~> ~md all governmental asscs~ancnts confirmed as uf thl~ da(e of Closing, if any, nnd BU)'C'r shalltnk~ titk 
subject to all pending Hsse.ssmcnts disclosed by Seller h~rein. if any. 
Seller reprusent~ I hac lh(.~ regulnr owners' associati<>n dues. if lUi>', are S -------~--·- per --··· _. _ 

{b) ConwHnnce: To Seller's ncwal knowledge. (i} Seller hns complied with :til applkable taws. nrdinanl:l's, mguhuion .... 
sli.ltutes, rules and restrictions pertaining lo or affecting the Property; (ii) pcrlhntHll\c.~c of lht~ Agn.!cmt:nl will nul rr.sull in lh~ breach l>f. 
C()llSlitute any dctimll under or result in Lhc impositi(.tn of any lien or encumbrance upon the Property undt~r Ml)' ugror.me-nl t\r other 
instrumenl to which Scll~r is a parLy or by which Seller or the Property is bound; and (iii) lhcrc nr~ no ll~gal al:tions. suits or other ll~gal 
or udministmtive proceeding!\ pending or threatened ugainst the Property, and SeliC I' is not awnrc of auy fact:-: which mightrcsttll in any 
l'l•ch nct;on1 suit or other proceeding. 

Section 16. Sm·vh•nl of Represcntutions und Watt'l'l\n(i~s: All representations, wurrantie-s, covenant~ atld agr~cments rnnde by the 
parties hereto shaU survive the Closing and delh•Cl)' of the deed. SeHer shall. nt or within six (6) months tdlcr the Closing, and without 
further consideration, execute, acknowledge und deliver to Buyer such other documents nnd instruments, nnd takt~ such uthcr action <hi 

Buyer may reasonably re<Juest or n~ may be nccc~sary to more effectively tnmsfer to Buyer the Property desct·ibed herein il\ ilccordance 
with this Agreement. 

Section 17. Applicttble Lnw: Thi:; Agreement shall be Ct)n~trued under the laws M lhe statr. in whkh lht Property is located. This form 
has only been approved for use in North Carolina. 

St!ctiun 18. Assi!~ntncnh This Agreement i~ freely nssignable unles~ otherwise cxpt·cssly ptovidt'd tm Exhibit B. 

St•t•tion 19. TiixvDcfcncd [~x-dmnge: Jn the event Buyer or Sl!llur de.sircs tn cff(:ct a tnx·del'tlrrctl e'changc in ctHHlCl~tinn with the 
.. ~unvcyance or the Property, lhty<!r nnd Seller ngtec to coopcrntc in effecting such \!xchangc; providt:d. however, that lhc ~.~xchangillt~. 
part)' shall be responsible for all additional costs ussodutcd with ~uch cxdumgc.\ und provided further, that n non.exdumging pany 
Hhall not mmmte any additional liability with respect (O ~uch tax-deterred cx<.~hange. Seller and Buyer shall excc~1te such <ldditionnl 
docuntents, at no cost to the non-cxchunging purty, us shalt be t·equircd to giv<.~ c.ffecl 10 this pruvi:;iou. 

Scc(ion 2.0. Mt!tnorandum of Contract: Upon request by eilher pnrty. the pcu1ies hereto shall exe~utc a mcmonmdmn of contra\.t in 
recordable fonn setting forth such provisions hereof (other than the PurchaNc Price and othe1· sums due) tl~ cichcr pnrty may wish 10 
ituX)rporate. Such memorandnm of contrncl shall contain n statement tlmt it nutomalically LermiJh\les and lh~ Propet1y is released from 
nny cffecr rhereby ns of n specific date 10 be suncd in the mcmornndum (which specific date shan he no h\tcr lhan the date or Closing). 
The cost of recording such memornndmn of contract shull be borne by the par{y requesting execution uf sume. 

St.>t~Hon 21. AuUmrlty: Rt•ch signatory to this Agr¢emenl repn~scnts and warrants thnt he or ~he hns l'ull aulhorily w sig.n thi:. 
Agreement and ~uch instruments M muy he necessary to ciTt~ctu~ttl! any transnction cmnewplatt~d by tlti1. Agre(!lllt'.nl on belml r or the 
pnrty for whom lu~ or she sign~ a11d that his or her signature binds such party. 

Section 22. nrolters: Except ns cxprcs::.ly provided herein, Bu)'Cr and Seller agree w indcmnil'y und hold each nLhcr hacmles:- !rum 
any nnd nll clnims of broker~. consultunt:l or rcnl ~:{lUte ugcnls by, thwugh nt· tmder thC' iudemnif)•ing part>' for fees or commh;Nion!-1 
•wising out of the sale of the Property tu Buyer. Buyer nnd Seller represent untl warrant to ench ntlll'r that: (i} except as to the Brokers 
dc$ignuted under Section I (t) of this Agreement, they have not employed nor cnt~agcd any brok(m.;, eon:;ultants or renl cstatt: agents to 
be involved in thi~ tmmmction mtd (ii) t1wt the compensation of lhe Brokers is established hy nnd shnll be govcmed by ~epanllt! 

agreements entered into as amongst the Brokers, the Buyer and/m· the Seller. 

Section Z3. AUumeys lt'ees: ff lcgnl proceedings are instituted to enforce any provision of thi~ Agreement, the prt:vniling party in the: 
proceeding shall be entitled to recover from the non-prevailing party rcmilHHibl(~ auomcys Ices and court costs incurred in connection 
with the proceeding. 

0 F;IFS/SYNTHETIC STUCCO: If the Hdjacenl box is dwcked. Seller discl<H•cs thnt the Prop~rty ha:-; been clud previouxly 
(either in whole or in part) with an ''exterior insulating and finishing system'' commonly known a:-; "EIFS" or "syntheth.~ stucco". Sellt~r 

makes no reprel\entntions or wammtics n.~g~trding s\tch system nnd Buyer is advised lo mnkc it~ own iadcpendenl d\"tc.nnrmuions with 
respect to conditions reJmcd to or occasioned by the existence of such materi<tls at the Pmpt~rly-

CY/1 Page 7 of 8 

Buyer lnioill"f-t~ ____ Seller Initials ___ .. , ... _ -------··· ..... 

Produced with zipForm® bv ~ipl.ogix 111070 f=illeen Mile Road. Fraser, Michigan 48026 ~1.1_\Y .• ~if&ruli.>:~ 

STANDARD FOIHvl 5MO-T 
J~evh;l•d '1/2013 

©7/2013 
(:ruvl!n Cnunty 



THE NORTH CAROLINA ASSOCIATION Or REALTORS®. INC. l\·!AKES NO REPRESJ:~TATION AS TO THE IJ~(iAL 
VALIDITY OR ADEQUACY Ol-1 ANY PROVISION OF THIS FORM IN AI'>:Y SPHClPIC TRANSACTIOK IF YOU DO l\OT 
UNDERSTAND THIS FORM OR FBEL THAT lT DOES NOT PROVIDE FOR YOUR LEGAL NEEDS. YOU SHOULD CON:;ULT 
t\ NORTH CAROLINA RRALESTATE ATTORNEY BEFORE YOU SteiN IT. 

BUYEit: 

JndivJdunJ 

-------------··~---~·--~-w•~ 

Dnte: ___ _ 

Date: 

llusincss I~ntity 

___ }~in_g~s Building Aoco!~!}_!;.~_ .. -!-~9 ............ . 
(Name of Entity) 

By: 

Name: See Signature A~9.~n4y.m:..:;.;.;;.. ____ _ 

Title:-----~~· . ··"·--·------~-

Date:------

SI1LLER: 

Date: ------ ........... ··-········ .. -· ........... ·-·--- ... ~ 

f)utt•: ......... ·-·- .. __ -·-· ...... --------------· .. 

Business l!:nHty 

- .... __ .,. ·-. . . . _(;_r:_~.V~'f\ -~-'2~~~--------
(Name of Eulil>') 

By: ................. _______ ....... ---~------

Nmnc: ·-·--··---- .. ------

Title: ........... ··--- __ -·· ·---------~-- .. --~ .. -----~---~--·--~-.. . 

Date: ~--~-----·" 

The undersigned Juweby ncknuwll!dges ··~ccipt of the Ent·nest Money set fot·lh luwcin nnd ngrccs to hold snld Enrnest !\•Ioney in 
nccol'dance witlt the terms hct·eof. 

_______ ................... -. . 

I) ate: ···-------·--·-···---··· .. ·--------------__ 

Pnge 8 of 8 

P(oducod wl!h zipFrnmttl by ziploglx 18070 FifU:nn Miln Road, Fws01, Mioh~an 41J0:!(1 'tiW~I 7.ipLooi:< com 

STANDARD FOUM 580·T 
Re,·iscd 7/1.013 

© "//2013 
Cr(lvcn County 



#171773 

Page 2 of2 



Exhibit A 

ParceiiD: 

Owner: 

Mailing Address : 

Property Address : 

Description : 

Lot DesctlpUon : 

Craven County Geographic Information System 
Craven County doos NOT warrant the Information shown on thl~ page and should be used ONlY for tax assessment purposes. 

This report wos ueated by Craven County GIS rc{lort•og St!cVI<:CS on6/6/I.Ol4 B:N:12 ,,,., 

8-217 -5004 

CRAVEN COUNTY 

406 CRAVEN ST NEW BERN NC 28560 

110 CORPORATE LN 

LOT 30 ECONOMIC DEV COMMISStON OF THE 
INDUSTRIAL PARK 

440 X 671.06 IRR 

Assessed Acreage : 8.060 Calculated Acreage: 8.050 

Deed Reference : 1604-1010 

Recorded Smvey : 

Estata Numbar : 

Land Value : $209,560 

Improvement Value : $0 

Total Value: $209,560 

City Name: 

Drainage District : 

Recorded Oate : 6 29 2000 

Tax Exempt : Yes 

# of Improvements : 0 

Fire tax District : WEST OF NEW BERN 
2 

Spacial District : 

Land use: COMM"GENERAL COMMERCIAL USE 

Recent Sales Information 

No Sales lnformatlon for this parcel 

list of Improvements to Site 
No improvemenls listed for thls parcel 

Seller: 
County of Craven 

By: ....... - ................. ····~···--·----···-··-···-··~ 
Name: Date 
TIUe: 

Page 1 of2 



Exhibit B to 
Agreement fm· J>m·chnsc and Sale of Real Property 

Between 
County of Cnwc.n, as "Scllcr,u and 

Minges Building Account, LLC, as "Buyct·" 

I. Additional Conditions to Closing. The Buyc1·ts obligation to purchase the 
Property is expt·essly conditioned upon satisfaction of the following additional 
conditions: 

a. All utilities needed to serve the Propcrtyt including water. sewe1· and 
electrict must be located on the Property. 

b. Buyer musl obtain a satisfactory soil condition rej1ort confirming that th~ 
soil conditions of the Property are suitable n1r Buyer's intended use of the 
Propet·ty. 

c. Buyer must receive a binding commitment li·om the Craven County 
Committee of 100, Ltd. to P"Y directly to the City of New Bern (or 
reimburse Buyc1· for payment of) impact fees assessed against the Property 
up to a maximum amount of$12,000. 

d. Seller will pay BU)'er's real estate agent a commission equal to ten percent 
(10%) of the Purchase Price. 

In the event that any one of the conditions listed above ure not satisfied in the 
Btlyet·'s sole discretion, then Buyer shall have the right to terminute this 
Agreement nud receive n fullref\tnd of its Ecm1est Money. 

2. Definitions. Capitalized tct·ms used herein and not otherwise defined shall have 
the same meaning as set forth in the tcl'ms of the Agreement. 

3. Conflict of Tcnns. In the event of u conflict between this Exhibit B and the terms 
of the Agreement~ the terms of this Exhibit l3 will control. 

Seller: 
County of Cmvcn 

By: @rX 1) -~M.:rll 
~~m; ClCk 'B · \}~:\=\' Jn: 
frtle: Co~ fV\(ILV'~je--r· · 

_1.?. -3 () ~ 2 Dt 'f 
Date 

Page 1 of2 



Signature Pnge Addendum 



Exhibit B-2 

to 

Agreetnent for Purchase and Sale of Real Property 
Between 

County of Craven, as "Seller" and 
Minges Building Account, LLC, as "Buyer" 

This Agreement and Closing thereunder is conditioned upon (i) approval by Seller's Board of County 
Conmlissioners and (ii) execution by Buyer and Seller of an agree1nent pursuant to Article 1 of Chapter 

158 of the North Carolina General Statutes regarding the treatment as an economic developtnent incentive 
of the difference between the Purchase Price and $160,000 (the fair tnarket value of the Property). 

Seller: 
County of Craven 

By: &d(_£. ~~ 
Name~c..c,k '\?.. ''\1 e:.4 .:o::t. 
Title: Cro~.y,~ (\f\t\.Yl''!)t-'V""" 

Buyer: 
Minges Building Account, LLC 

By: ___________ ~ 

Nan1e: 
Title: 

By: __ ~----------
Natne: 
Title: 

By: 

Natne: 

Title: 

By: ________ ~----

Natne: 

Title: 

(Q·-"JO .. :z_ot\f 

Date 

Date 

Date 

Date 

Date 



Attachment #2.A. 

July 11, 2014 

The settlement of the Craven County Tax Collector for the tax year 2013 (Fiscal Year 
2013-2014) is listed below. The settlement should be approved by motion of the Board 
before the charge is made for the current year's taxes. 

CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

General Fund Original Levy 
Fire District Original Levy 

Add: 

Afterlists 
Additions 

Total Original Levy 

Plus Adjustments 

Less: 

Write-offs 
Adjustments 
Releases 

Total 

Net Levy 

Collected 

Uncollected as of June 30, 2014 

Percentage of 2013 taxes collected ------- 98.73 

Net taxable valuation-- $9,443,258,112 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

43,080,492.49 
1, 703,272.63 

44,783,765.12 

1,488,627.38 
5,078.92 

-0-

46,277,471.42 

- 19,589.23 
-0-

- 297,396.92 

45,960,485.27 

45,377,548.27 

582,937.00 



ANNUAL REPORT OF REAL PROPERTY, CERTIFIED VALUATION AND 
PERSONAL PROPERTY OTHER THAN REGISTERED MOTOR VEHICLES 

July11, 2014 

CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

General Fund Original Levy 
Fire District Original Levy 

Total Levy 

Add: 

Afterlists 
Plus Adjustments 
Additions 

Less: 

Write-offs 
Adjustments 
Releases 

Total 

Net Levy 

Collected 

Uncollected as of June 30, 2014 

Percentage of 2013 taxes collected ------- 98.99 

Net taxable valuation-- $9,013,445,113 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

40,833,265.64 
1,608,243.12 

42,441,508.76 

1,488,627.38 
-0-

5,019.37 

43,935,155.51 

- 4,875.53 
-0-

- 67,129.06 

43,863,150.92 

43,420,201.07 

442,949.85 



ANNUAL REPORT OF REGISTERED MOTOR VEHICLES 

July 11, 2014 

CRAVEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

General Fund Original Levy 
Fire District Original Levy 

Total Original Levy 

Add: 

Additions 
Plus Adjustments 

Less: 

Write-offs 
Adjustments 
Releases 

Total 

Net Levy 

Collected 

Uncollected as of June 30, 2014 

Percentage of 2013 taxes collected ------- 93.33 

Net taxable valuation-- $429,812,999 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2,24 7,226.85 
95,029.51 

2,342,256.36 

59.55 
-0-

2,342,315.91 

- 14,713.70 
-0-

- 230,267.86 

2,097,334.35 

1,957,347.20 

139,987.15 



Attachment #2.B. 

2014 CHARGE TO THE CRAVEN COUNTY TAX COLLECTOR 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF CRAVEN 

TOTHETAXCOLLECTOROFTHECOUNTYOFCRAVEN 

You are hereby authorized, empowered, and commanded to collect 
the taxes set forth in the tax records filed in the office of the Craven County 
Tax Collector and in the tax receipts herewith delivered to you, in the 
amounts and from the taxpayers likewise therein set forth. Such taxes are 
hereby declared to be a first lien upon all real property of the respective 
taxpayers in the County of Craven, and this order shall be a full and 
sufficient authority to direct, require, and enable you to levy on and sell any 
real or personal property of such taxpayer, for and on account thereof, in 
accordance with law. 

Witness my hand and official seal, this 18th day of July 2014. 

Thomas L. Mark, Chairman 
Craven County Board of Commissioners 

Attest: 

Gwendolyn M. Bryan, Clerk 
Craven County Board of Commissioners 



Attachment #.~.C 

TAX804P CRAVEN COUNTY PAGE 
CREDIT MEMOS SUBJECT TO BOARD APPROVAL ON 07/21/2014 

TAXPAYER NAME ACCT#/TICKET# 

BADOUR, RANDY JOE 0090907 2012-0002288 
BOAT NOT TAXABLE TO CRAVEN COUNTY 

BADOUR, RANDY JOE 0090907 2013-0002236 
BOAT NOT TAXABLE TO CRAVEN COUNTY 

BRITT, BENJAMIN JASON 
DID NOT OWN 1/1/13 

BROWN, GREG 
DID NOT OWN 1/1/2013 

0085610 2013-0090170 

0060152 2013-0090197 

BRUCE, AARON M 0084606 2011-0007280 
BOAT NOT TAXABLE TO CRAVEN COUNTY 

BRUCE, AARON M 0084606 2012-0007301 
BOAT NOT TAXABLE TO CRAVEN COUNTY 

BRUCE, AARON M 0084606 2013-0090216 
BOAT NOT TAXABLE TO CRAVEN COUNTY 

BRYANT, GREGORY MACRAY & YOLAN 0020525 2013-0090236 
DID NOT OWN 1/1/2013 

CAMARGO, CAESAR GARCIA 0044290 2012-0008603 
DID NOT OWN 1/1/2012 

CAMARGO, CAESAR GARCIA 0044290 2013-0090281 
DID NOT OWN 1/1/2013 

CONTRERAS, JACINTO 0084037 2011-0011886 
DID NOT OWN 1/1/2011 

KOFFARNUS, DAWN MARIE 0093905 2013-0092599 
NOT TAXABLE TO CRAVEN COUNTY 

MARSHALL, CLINT ROBERT 0098831 2013-0092751 
MILITARY EXEMPTION 

STEPHENSON, DARLETHA 6880500 2014-0090151 
SENIOR EXCLUSION BILLING CORRECTION 

AMOUNT 

63.58 

55.39 

79.56 

107.46 

622.83 

548.77 

480.34 

210.37 

52.81 

48.51 

57.59 

181.89 

31.36 

12.00 

1 



TAXB04P CRAVEN COUNTY PAGE 2 

CREDIT MEMOS SUBJECT TO BOARD APPROVAL ON 07/21/2014 

TAXPAYER NAME ACCT#/TICKET# AMOUNT 

WILLIAMS, CALVIN 0035181 2014-0090158 6.62 
DUPLICATE BILLING ERROR 

WIRELESS SOLUTIONS GROUP 0085280 2013-0095384 131. 07 
DOUBLE BILLED-SEE ACCT 79444 

16 -CREDIT MEMO(S) 2,690.15 



TAX805P CRAVEN COUNTY PAGE 1 

REFill~DS SUBJECT TO BOARD APPROVAL ON 07/21/2014 

TAXPAYER NAME ACCT#/TICKET# AMOUNT 

-REFUND(S) .00 



RtC'O JUl t S 2014 

Attachment #3 .. 
DISTR1BUTION: 

ORIGINAL: FINANCE 
DUPLICATE: DEPARTMENT 

BUDGET AMENDMENTS 

1. Fund: Fund Balance 2. Department: Recreation & Parks 

3. Revenue Account Number(s) Amount 4. Expenditure Account Number( s) Amount 
101-0000-399.01-00 Fund Balance 9,784.00 101-8001-460.40-00 Contractual Services 9,784.00 

•' 

Total: 9,784.00 Total: 9,784.00 

Justification or Explanation of Change: 
These funds are needed to complete the Recreation Comprehensive Master Plan by ECU. The plan was started last fiscal year and will be 
completed within the next few months. 

Department Head 

County Commissioners/Chairman 

FINBA- Revised 010907 

Jul 15,2014 

Date 

Date 

County Manager Date 

Journal Entry Number Date 



Attachment #4. 

DJS.tRlf2UTlO-"tt 

ORIGINAL: FINANCE 
DUPLICATE:: DEPART'ME~'T 

BUDGET AMENDlVIENTS 

L Fund: 7002 ~CARTS Operations 2. De-partm.ent: !.~-~1- -~-CARTS Adtnlnistra.Uon 

3. Revenue AccountNumber(s) Amount 4, Expenditure Account Number(s) Amount 
1 Q1.,;7002"J48.18~00 Section 18 Capitai~St 101-7001~450.73.,01 Over $5,000 46.103.00 
To1~7oo2~3-3s-~m~:-cin·s~f8Vel\icies __ _ ~ ................................................................ . 

-------------~--~-----------

--~------------···"---·-······-----~ 

~~~----~..__._.__,._..~·-···························· 

~---~~-----··--·············--------

---~-~-----------------~·-············-~~----

----------:.....-------~-----------------· ----~~~~ 

--------,--.--.----~-----------------------··················· 

----------~~--··············- --------· 
---,......~~~~-~~-~~___.__._._.,..·~~---·---····--·-···· ---·-·--··--·--··-- ··--------------------··-~---~-------

Total: 46,103.00 Total: 46,103.00 
,_ ____ ~--------------~~--.;...,.....~-,..,.....-----;.~-i-.----..;.....;._.-------___;.;....;L. __________ ---____ .;__;. __ .....L-__ __,_....;.;.,...,___ 

Justificatkm or Explanation·ofChange: 
Line Item #1 01-7001-450..73:-011 Capitai Outlay over $ 5;000 had an 1..1nencumbered balance of $46;800 at th~ end of FY20 14. One of the 
vehicles b1.1dgeted In FY20l4 was order€d but notd:elivered by June 30, 2014; The state approved a Per1od ofPerformance ~xtension, 
allowing the money aUocated In the FY2.014.CTP CapitatGranttobeavailable inFY20l5 .. CARTS is requesting a budgetarnendmehtto 
in dude to co5tof purchas1ng the FY2014 approved vehicles in FY2015, 90% of the costofvehides wm be reim~ursed by the state; the 
10% !oca! match is anticipatedto be covered by the sale of the vehicle being repla<;ed. 

~1/Jij 
~·~?~_.·.···.-~. ·_.1 /_ .. l:...~,----

.

/ / . .. .. . ·. . .. ~ --~-~·--........, 
.[ - - -· - . - / -•' 

Department4-r'eac1 Date County·Mimager Date 

~--.,.,.,.._·-·-······--····-------_ ................................ ~. -~-~----~~-

County Con1miSsioners/Chairman. Date Journal EntryNumber Date 

FJNBA -Revised 010907 



ifmum Wuunh! 

:t\l 
L Fund: General 

Attachment #5. 

BliDGET A.MENDl\IJENTS 

DISTRiBUTION: 

ORIGlNAL-: FINANCE 
DUPLICATE: DEPARTMENT 

--.............,~-~--------·-----------~~--~~---, 
2 •. Department Sherifrs200t. ---~---~~'-'-------'-.....'-~ 

3; Revenue Account Numher(s) 
101.;000-399.01-00 
General Fund 

Total: 

Justification {)f. Explanation of Change: 

A.moun.t 4" Expenditure Ac.count Number(s) Amount 
9,610,00 101 .. 2001410;32-40 9,610.00 

~------

Other Supply 

~ .............. __ ~ 
~~~..:..... .....•............. -~...;._...;....;.._;......___:_ _ __;_;_ 

------- -··--·-··--·----------~-~---

~~~·········-

9,610 . .00 

This is< carryover funds from the FY20 l3~20l4 budget~ In ·February of20 14 a budge.tamendrnent was passed allowing a $1 0;000 donation 
tn be credJtt:d to the other ~t;pP!ieslin~ item 1n the 2(}13/2014 PY budget. Orily $36956 of the $1 01()00 was s~nt last FV creatipg a carry 
over in the arnoQnt of$9r~H.b. 44. 

--·--·------~--~.~-. --. .,.,. ___ ___,__ 

County Manager Date 

County CDmmissioners/Chaittnan Date Journallintry Ntunber Date 

P.INBA '-Revised tH0907 



CRAVEN COUNTY HURRICANE IRENE HMGP 
FINAL BID TABULATION FORM 

CASE ADDRESS 
FilE# OCCUPANT 

Spencer W. Bailey 
417 Riverside Drive, New 

Bern NC 28560 

1&2 
and 

George C. Heath, Jr., & 
Rebecca Heath 

415 Riverside Drive 
New Bern NC 28560 

Jolin Davis Metts 
3 407 Harbor Drive 

New Bern NC 28560 

James & Kathleen Kohler 
4 103 Seafarer Court 

New Bern NC 28562 

ACTUAL BID 
(TABULATED) 

$213,292 

$215,585 

$340,000 

$240,000 

$85,729 

$82,938 

$130,000 

$83,000 

$93,515 

$99,751 

$125,000 

$98,000 
-

BID OPENING DATE: July 10, 2014 

PRELIMINARY BID SUMMARY (RA-7) REVIEWED/TABULATED BY: ------
(SEE ATTACHMENT) 

CONTRACTOR 
RECOMMENDED 

COMMENTS AWARD ( tl") 

Units 1 & 2 to be awarded to the 
IMEC X lowest lump sum bidder for both 

units. 

Paul Woolard 

B&B Construction 

Gilbert Everett 

Low Bidder 
IMEC 

Paul Woolard X 

B&B Construction 

Gilbert Everett 

IMEC X 
Low Bidder 

Paul Woolard 

B&B Construction 

Gilbert Everett 

> 
rt 
rt 
Ql 
n ::r 
3 
CD 
~ 
rt 

=#: 
0'1 



\ .\. 
, .... ___ 

Hurricane Irene Elevation/Acquisition Project 
DR-4019 

-·---... 

\ 
I 

\ 
•, 

~-, __ 

.I . 

J 

~~ .:..- --
Legend * Acquisitions 

Elevations 



Attachment #7.A. 

Volunteer Board Information and Interest Sheet 
Craven County, North Carolina 

Names of board, committee, authority, etc., in which you are interested. Please list in order of priority: 

t/.rfJ.)'/gA LIII~Cj: fJ~u.r,,~ ' 

Name: eVANS Home Phone: (ifz...)~ 3.6 -..J ~f'r 
Home Address: 

City: 

Township: 

Occupation: 

Place of Employment: 

. E-Mail A<;Jdress: 

(Please indicate your preferred contact number.) 

Education . 

En Q L1 s-~ L 're,el'f' r;, I( E... 

Business and Civic ExPerience 

Please List Other Lo;:::egional and Statewide Board~ Qommittees or Commissions on Which You Serve 

Aha :;z:;; "~ 6eA ~ &;:sL . 
/ 

(A resume may be attached to this form, but will not be accepted in lieu of the form.) / 

Date: Z::- /.:?- .:Z" I i Signature~ '% J ' . h~ 
Please be advised that this fonn is a public record, and must be made available to the public upon request. 
The Craven County Board of Commissioners sincerely appreciates the interest of all citizens in serving their county. For 
more infonnation on the responsibilities of various boards, you may view the on-line board descriptions or contact the 
County Clerk's Office at (252) 636-6601. RETURN FORM TO: CRAVEN COUNTY CLERK, 406 CRAVEN STREET, 
NEW BERN, NC 28560. The fonn may also be sent via e-mail (gbrvan@cravencountync.govl or fax: (252-637-0526. 

This form will remain active until one year after date received. 



J 

NAME: 

BORN: 

ADDRESS: 

PHONE: 

e-MAIL 

BIRTH PLACE: 

NATIONALITY: 

SOCIAL SECURITY#: 

MARITAL STATUS: 

EDUCATION: 

VOCATIONAL TRAINING: 

WORK EXPERIENCE: 

VITAE 

EVANS, Rieke Suganami 

December 18, 1938 

3rd Daughter of late Maj. General lchiro and Mrs. Shige Suganami 

605 Winged Foot Court, New Bern, NC 28562 

(252) 636-2878 (H) (252) 671-6354(Cell) 

kojoe@suddenlink.net 

Tokyo, Japan 

Naturalized U.S. Citizen (October 25, 1974) 

561-62-1033 

Widowed (8/9/2010) 

SEIJO UNIVERSITY, TOKYO, JAPAN 

Bachelor of Arts ( 4/10/57-3/20/61) 

Major: English Literature; Minor: Teacher Training -English 

Thesis: Study of Jane Austen( Required for B.A. in Japan) 

STENOTYPE SCHOOL(Specialized in Court Reporting) 

Los Angeles, California (5/15/61-9/25/62)- (Certified Stenotypist) 

Director, Student Financial Aid/Student Services 

Mission Community College, Santa Clara, Calif.( 10/15/79-6/30/86) 

Ohlone Community College, Fremont, Calif. ( 4/76-10/79) 

Administrative Assistant to the President, Miller College( non-profit. 

Private Court Reporting College)- (3/69-4/76) 



MEMBERSHIP: 

HONORS: 

Executive Secretary to Assistant Director/Traffic and Sales 

Pan American World Airways Inc. Tokyo, Japan (2/1/64-2/14/69) 

Legal Secretary, Logan, Bernhard & Okamoto 

Tribunal Lawyers, Tokyo, Japan {12/1/62-1/31/64) 

NASFAA(National Association of Student Financial Aid Administrators 

President, Business and Professional Women(Arlington, VA) 

Resident Associate, Smithsonian, Washington, DC 

Elected Regional Coordinator, California Community College 

Student Financial Aid Administrators Association 1979-80 

Ten Year Service Award from California Association of SFAA 

Third Ranking Member of Graduating Class Seijo Univ. Tokyo, Japan 

Bilingual- Japanese/English 

Registered Interpreter/Japanese Embassy, Washington, DC 

REMARKS: Family Background- Living Relatives: One Elder Sister, Mrs. Natsuko Fritts, Tucson, AZ 

One Brother, Dr. Hidemi Suganami, Wales, England, Professor, lnt'l Relations/Foreign Relations. 

Work Experiences include: Interview Applicants, Counseling socio-economically disadvantaged 

students, balancing financial records, filing reports to government agencies(federaljstate) and 

local Board of Trustees. Consecutive Interpreting. Plan, coordinate and evaluate all student 

services. Married in Arlington, VA May 1986 to late Joseph Culver Evans, CIA Covert, Langley, VA 

retired in New Bern, NC May 1996. Widowed August 2010. 



No. 9932350 

QJ~~~~:~r~~s~r-~f.i.t~~fR~Bd· ~~~-~~~~~~"·~~~~1~l~L~~~~f! 

gJd~@g~ 355619 -~~ ~db~J'4t6(altb;@lt?!.: A12 597 099 
•ORIGilNALo 

~~~~~H~ U3~~ hm~e; 
#JI~?/. Med1.um .-:-JJ?~Y~ Byown ·,;/~~~ Black ~~r:?fl.. 5 w~l-3/4 ~~,. 
~~ 90 /V.MI~'/tlt.k~~hffi#ldt/1/eynuw/IJ None · 
~nlq/jla/(&? Sin gl e ,~~~r/:A?'~?ttffmtdt;J?ud/;1{. J a an • ----~---- __ ~ __ 

J/#l'*~~~~~~~hbi?//~W~~t9td/H/~fi/JU~#hj~Af/#puj1/tA~:¥K~_A§,~t)/fP4~~~m~ 

-~ 
·~ 
~~ 

~j, ... 
. ;~i 

··Jy~:.~. 

' .,~~ ~Ia. ·~ ., •. ., .... 
~'\} ''l ~": ..... ;"if. ·"· ~ -1 
~:1.1. ' 
·~ 
\J 

( 6'tJn?piRI~? mzd Inti? si,p;zatun tJ/"holddr J 
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA ( SS: . . · 

CENTRAL DIST. OF CALIFORNIA ~ 

······---~~~~~~~~T~i~d-st;t;;.:~:~~~~~~~~:~~~:::~~::::::~:~:: .. ~~ 
~..k/4'U~ ·······--····-········-··-··-····Los ~les·-····--·············--·-····-·-
/}J?/. October 25, 1974 ~~~~}A'(a 

***R IET{'O SUt1A NAMT*** 
~/HOA~:2I;~ 2700- San Marino St. Los An eles ·Calif , 
·~2/~~ ·~~#u~ttP ~~ ·~ 
~~ ~ . ~~.-J~~;a·~ ~ )1;;,.Y.~~~ ?t~~d,~and~.d . ~~ 
,a,fl??l~~,ai#Jr~~~· ~~~_/~ttelt~. ~-'~~~~ 
~ ~flhK~ ~ . '/~di_G@n~~ ~~,u~~~~~~ 25th 
~1'//-- October ~~~P'HI//"~1'd/JtD~MU~d_,(I/H/~ 

Seventy-four. . 

EJ)vVAETJ N: ~ KB..I ~rz.NtAll 

IT IS PUNISHABLE BY U. S. LAW TO COPY, 
PRINT OR PHOTOGRAPH THIS CERTIFICATE. :JJy 

6'/t'd tJ/!Itt'. ..•....••• U. S. District.......... 6burt. 

.:1. t! =-r~ :i)eputy &IIi!. 



Attachment #8 .... · 

NORTH CAROLINA 
OFFER TO PURCHASE AND CONTRACT 

CRAVEN COUNTY 

TERRY AND BARBARA FORNEY as Buyer, hereby offers to purchase and CRAVEN COUNTY and CITY OF NEW BERN, 
as Seller, collectively, upon acceptance of said offer, agrees to sell and convey, all of that plot, piece or parcel ofland described below 
(hereafter referred to as the "Property"), upon the following terms and conditions: 

t. REAL PROPERTY: Located in the City of New Bern, Craven County, North Carolina, being known as and more particularly 
described as: 
Street Address: 836 Howard Street 
Subdivision Name: n/a 
Tax Parcel ID No.: 8-003-069 
Plat Reference: n/a 
Being all of that property more particularly described in Deed Book 3170, Page 558 in the Craven County Registry. 
2. PURCHASE PRICE: The purchase price is $_3,000.00 and shall be paid as follows: 
(a) $ _500.00 __ EARNEST MONEY DEPOSIT with this offer by a cash IJ bank check (J certified check a other: N/ A to be 

held by Seller until the sale is closed, at which time it will be credited to Buyer, or until this contract is otherwise properly 
terminated. In the event: (I) this offer is not accepted; or (2) any of the Seller's conditions hereto are not satisfied, then all earnest 
monies shall be refunded to Buyer. In the event ofbreach of this contract by Seller, all earnest monies shall be refunded to Buyer 
upon Buyer's request In the event of breach of this contract by Buyer, then all earnest monies shall be forfeited to Seller upon 
Seller's request, but such forfeiture shall not affect any other remedies available to Seller for such breach. 

(b) $_2,500.00 BALANCE of the purchase price in cash or readily available funds at Closing. 
3. CONDITIONS: 
(a) This contract is not subject to Buyer obtaining financing. 
(b) The Property must be in substantially the same or better condition at Closing as on the date of this offer, reasonable wear and tear 

excepted. 
(c) The Prop(ilty is being sold subject to all liens and encumbrances of record, ifan)f.l 
(d) Other than as provided herein, the Property is being conveyed "as isn. 
(e) This contract is subject to the provisions of G.S. §160A .. 269. Buyer acknowledges that this contract is subject to certain notice 

provisions and the rights in others to submit upset bids in accordance therewith. 
(f) Title shall be delivered at Closing by QillTCLAIM DEED 
4. SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS: Seller makes no warranty or representation as to any pending or confirmed governmental special 
assessments for sidewalk, pavin& water, sewer, or other improvements on or adjoining the Property, or pending or confumed owners' 
association special assessments. Buyer shal1 take title subject to all pending assessments, if any. 
5. PRORATIONS AND ADJUSTMENTS: Unless otherwise provided, the following items shall be prorated and either adjusted 
between the parties or paid at Closing: (a) Ad valorem taxes on real property shall be prorated on a calendar year basis through the 
date of Closing; (b) All late listing penalties, if any, shall be paid by Seller; and (c) Rents, if any, for the Property shall be prorated 
through the date of Closing. 
6. EXPENSES: Buyer shall be responsible for all costs with respect to any title search, title insurance, recording of the deed, its legal 
fees, and for preparation and recording of all instruments required to secure the balance of the purchase price unpaid at Closing. Seller 
shall pay for preparation of a deed and all other documents necessary to perform Seller's obligations under this agreement, and for any 
excise tax (revenue stamps) required by law. 
7. EVIDENCE OF TITLE: Not Applicable. 
8. LABOR AND MATERIAL: Seller shall furnish at Closing an affidavit and indemnificatil'»l. agreement in form satisfactory to 
Buyer showing that all labor and materials, if any, furnished to the Property within 120 days prior to the date of Closing have been 
paid for and agreeing to indemnify Buyer against all loss from any cause or claim arising therefrom. 
9. CLOSING: Closing shall be defined as the date and time of recording of the deed. All parries agree to execute any and all 
documents and papers necessary in connection with Closing and transfer of title on or before September 30, 2014. 
The deed is to be made to:_ Terry and Barbara Forney , or assign(s). 
CLOSING SHALL CONSTITUTE ACCEPTANCE OF THE PROPERTY IN ITS THEN EXISTING CONDITION. 
10. POSSESSION: Unless otherwise provided herein, possession shall be delivered at Closing. 

Buyer Initials]]_ f('f Seller Initials __ _ 

Page I of2 



11. PROPERTY INSPECTION, APPRAISAL, INVESTIGATION: 
(a) This contract is not subject to inspection, appraisal or investigation, as the Property is being bought "as is". Seller makes no 
representation as to water} sewer, conditions, title, access, or fitness for any intended use. 
(b) CLOSING SHALL CONSTITUTE ACCEPTANCE OF THE PROPERTY IN ITS THEN EXISTING CONPITION. 
12. RIGHT OF ENTRY, RESTORATION AND INDEMNITY: Buyer and Buyer's agents and contractors shall not have the right to 
enter upon the Property for any purpose without advance written pennission of the Seller. If such permission is given, Buyer will 
indellltliiY and hold Seller harmless from all loss, damage, claims, suits or costs, which shall arise out of any contract, agreement, or injury 
to any person or property as a result of any activities of Buyer and Buyer's agents and contractors relating to the Property. This indemnity 
shall survive this contract and any termination hereof. 
13. OTHER PROVISIONS AND CONDITIONS: (ITEMIZE ALL ADDENDA TO THIS CONTRACT AND ATTACH 
HERETO.): None. 
14. RISK OF LOSS: The risk ofloss or damage by fire or other casualty prior to Closing shall be upon Seller. 
15. ASSIGNMENTS: This contract may not be assigned without the written consent of all parties, but if assigned by agreement, then 
this contract shall be binding on the assignee and the assignee's heirs, successors or assigns (as the case may be). 
16. PARTIES: This contract shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the parties, i.e., Buyer and Seller and their heirs, 
successors and assigns. As used herein, words in the singular include the plural and the masculine includes the feminine and neuter 
genders) as appropriate. 
17. SURVIVAL: If any provision herein contained which by its nature and effect is required to be observed, kept or performed after 
the Closing, it shall survive the Closing and remain binding upon and for the benefit of the parties hereto until fully observed, kept or 
performed. 
18. ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This contract contains the entire agreement of the parties and there are no representations, inducements 
or other provisions other than those expressed herein. All changes, additions or deletions hereto must be in writing and signed by all 
parties. 
19. NOTICE AND EXECUTION: Any notice or communication to be given to a party herein may be given to the party or to such 
party's agent. This offer shall become a binding contract (the "Effective Date'') when signed by both Buyer and Seller and such 
signing is communicated to the offering party. This contract is executed under seal in signed multiple originals, all of which together 
constitute one and the same instrument, with a signed original being retained by each party, and the parties adopt the word "SEAL" 
beside their signtliures below. r: 

BUYER: SELLER 

CRAVEN COUNTY 

~~~(SEAL) Nam~==~~~ 
Date; bCf\ o ::?( \ 2-.9 l i-

By: 

Its: 

Date; 

---~------~-(SEAL) 

CITY OF NEW BERN 

By: ---------~--(SEAL) 
Its: 

Date: 

Buyer Initials 71-k(p Seller Initials __ _ 

Page 2 of2 



FROM--------TO--------· 
\ . 

\ 



Craven County Geographic Information System 
Craven County does NOT warrant the information shown on this page and should be used ONLY for tax assessment purposes. 

This report was created by Craven County GIS reporting services on 7/9/2014 4:45:53 PM 

ParceiiD: 

Owner: 

Mailing Address: 

Property Address : 

Description : 

Lot Description : 

8-003 -069 

CRAVEN COUNTY & NEW BERN-CITY 

416 POLLOCK ST NEW BERN NC 28560 

836 HOWARD ST 

836 HOWARD ST 

Assessed Acreage : 0.000 Calculated Acreage: 0.080 

Deed Reference : 3170-0558 Recorded Date : 2 21 2013 

Recorded Survey : 

Estate Number : 

Land Value : $6,000 Tax Exempt : Yes 

Improvement Value : $0 # of Improvements : 0 

Total Value: $6,000 

City Name: NEW BERN Fire tax District : 

Drainage District: Special District : 

Land use: VACANT-RESIDENTIAL TRACT 

Recent Sales Information 

SALE DATE Sellers Name Buyers Name Sale Type 

2/21/2013 LOVETTE, WILLIE L 
HEIRS 

CRAVEN COUNTY & NEW STRAIGHT 
BERN-CITY TRANSFER 

3/31/2000 LOVETTE, WILLIE L TAYLOR, MICHAEL CARR MULTI-PARCEL-

12/18/1988 

12/18/1988 

12/8/1988 

SALE 

LOVETTE, WILLIE LEWIS LOVETTE, WILLIE L MULTI-PARCEL-
& SALE 

TAYLOR, MICHAEL LOVETTE, WILLIE L HEIRS STRAIGHT 
CARR TRANSFER 

WARD, WILLIAM F JR & LOVETTE, WILLIE LEWIS & LAND SALE 
BETSY F 

List of Improvements to Site 

No improvements listed for this parcel 

Sale Price 

$3,500 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$2,000 



\ 'fr\, 1?\ 
V' / v / 

"6'. / (S'/ 

\ '\ /// "\ 

\ 

<o// r~ 

\ \/ 
1-

/' 
./ 

/,/" 

\ 

\\-$-o.tt.. 
"'1~ 
~ 

\\ <9\ ~ 
:;; tJ' 

~ 
\ ~.). 
\\ 

Craven County does NOT warrant the information shown on this map 
and should be used ONLY for tax assessment purposes. 

/ 
"\?~/ 

'\ / 

// 
,,/ 

~q, v 
~\ 
~~ \ 
""' \ \ 

'\ 
'%~ 

7~ ~\\ r~ /-'\ 

/ / 

"\'\ 

~ / 
~'( 

~ / '\,_.9 

."'1£. 

~ v 

~ 
~ 

>~ ~ 
~ ~'\ 

1 
N 

1 inch equals 33 feet A 



Page 1 of3 

NORTH CAROLINA 

CRAVEN COUNTY 

Revenue Stamps: $7.00 
Parcel # 8-003-069 

~~~~W~nDWIIIIIIIWII~IIIllllll~lll~lllll~llllll 
In'lttfle ID: 000002206457 TYPI1: CRP 
Recorded: 02/21/2013 at 09:52:37 AM 
Fee Amt: $33.00 Page 1 of 3 
Revenue iax: $7.00 
Workflowll 0000087633·0001 
Craven, NC 
Sherr! B. Richard ReQister of Deeds 

BK3170Pa558 

COMMISSIONER'S DEED 

~~.... 

THIS COMMISSIONER'S DEED, made and executed this_\_\_ day of ~cb'u"'/ 
2013, by and between AARON D. ARNETTE, Commissioner, pursuant to a judgment of the 

District Court of the N.C. General Court of Justice in Craven County, North Carolina in an action 

entitled ''Craven County, Plaintiffv. Unknown Heirs, Assigns or Devisees ofWillie L. Lovette and 

spouse, if any, or any other person or entity claiming thereunder, et al, Defendants (12-CVD-655):', 

Grantor, to Craven County and the City of New Bern, whose mailing address is: do Aaron 

Arnette 416 Pollock Street, New Bern, NC 28560, Grantee. 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, said Aaron D. Arnette, Commissioner, being empowered and directed by a 

judgment in the said action, did, on the 18th day of January, 2013, after due advertisement according 

to law, and as directed by said judgment, expose the land hereinafter described to public sale at the 

door of the Craven County Courthouse, where and when Craven County and the City ofNew Bern 

became the last and highest bidder for said land at the public sale for the sum of$3,467.89; 

WHEREAS, on the 18th day of January, 2013, Aaron D. Arnette, Commissioner, reported to 

the Court that Craven County and the City of New Bern were the last and highest bidders for said 

property in the amount of$3,467.89; 

. / Prepared By: 
S~ell, Sugg, Cannichael, Hicks & Hart, P.A. 

416 Pollock Street 
New Bern, NC 28560 

Book: 3170 Page: 558 Seq: 1 



Page 2 of 3 

lii~IIIHIIIIIIIIIWI 
Inlalle IO: 000002208458 Type: CRP 

Panf: 2 of 3 

BK3170 PG559 

WHEREAS, more than 1 0 days elapsed since the report of sale was filed and no upset bid 

was offered; 

WHEREAS, an order confirming the sale to Craven County and the City of New Bern was 

entered by the Assistant Craven County Clerk ofSuperior Court on or about February6, 2013. 

WHEREAS, on or about the 6th day of February, 2013, Aaron D. Arnette, Commissioner, 

was ordered by judgment of said Court to execute a deed in fee simple to Craven County and the 

City of New Bern; and 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, the said Aaron D. Arnette, 

Commissioner, as aforesaid, does hereby grant, bargain, sell, and convey to Craven County and the 

City of New Bern, all of that certain tract or parcel of land Lying, situate and being in Nwnber Eight 

Township, Craven County, North Carolina, and more particularly descdbed as follows: 

All of that certain property wore particularly described in Deed Book 1207, 
at Page 206, in the Craven County Registry. This property is also commonly 
referred to by its tax parcel identification number which is 8-003-069. 

This parcel is not the primary residence ofthe grantor. 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the aforesaid tracts or parcels of land and all privileges and 

appurtenances thereunto belonging to Craven County and the City of New Bern, the said Grantee, in 

fee simple forever, in as full and ample manner as said Aaron D. Arnette, Commissioner, as 

aforesaid, is authorized and empowered to convey same. 

2 

Book: 3170 Page: 558 Seq: 2 



Page 3 of 3 

l~llmii~~~~~III~~IIIIII~IIIOO~II 
ImaQe ID: 000002206459 TYPe: GRP 

Page 3 of 3 

BK3170 PG560 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF. the said Aaron D Arnette, Commissioner, hath hereunto set his hand 

and seal the day and year first above written. 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF CRA YEN 

{j' ~~-___; ~~ /,.:·~·---···· (SEAL) 

Aaron David Arnette, COMMISSIONER 

l, ,~(1 Q Jh.Jc..h,·r'l5 , a Notary Public ofthe County of Craven, State of 
North Carolina, do hereby certify that Aaron D. Arnette, Commissioner, personally appeared 
before me this day and acknowledged the due execution of the foregoing instrument 

WITNESS my hand and notarial stamp or seal, this II '!b day of ~""'q , 2013. 

My Commission Expires: 
/0-3·dOJS 

\\SERVER04\Issdocs\0000000S\00040144.000.DOC 

3 

Book: 3170 Page: 558 Seq: 3 



2 
R I 

PINES RD 
'Jge 0078 

CHECK 
DAM {TYP) 

I 

6=Zt 
LEE, NORMAN 8 Ill 
& ELIZABETH 8 
505 STATELY PINES Rd 
Book 1744/Page 0101 

IWI11. • • 1 1 oo' , 
HEADWALL 
0.5' WIDE 
WINGWALL 
0.5' WIDE 

7' MIN. {TYP) 

~ 

~\ 
~~~a, 

~ 

EATMON PROPERTY EASEMENT 

CRAVEN COUNTY JULY 2014 

::¢ 
1--1 
1-' 
• 
to 
I 


	Attachment #1
	Attachment #2.A
	Attachment #2.B
	Attachment #2.C
	Attachment #3
	Attachment #4
	Attachment #5
	Attachment #6
	Attachment #7.A
	Attachment #8
	Attachment #11.B

